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1| OVERVIEW

Group snapshot
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Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 12% in the last year
from E712m in 2027 to

£800m n 2023

\
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Energy generation
Qur renewable energy
assets produce enough

energy 1o power over
a million UK nhomes

A
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Number of employees

We employ over 1,500
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving Is cver 681,101

carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 224 borrowers
in the UK
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Number of sites

We own 229
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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1. Energy

Appraxmatively 50% of the Groups net assets
choas solar

COMprice energy generating assets sy

enertyy sites and wind farms These assets provide
lena-terre revenue strearns. though ther value can
stll e impacted by changes in pricirg and demand
T energy soctonis intentionally drversiiied across a
ranae of tochnologres 1o mubigate agamst 1@ss
favourasle conditions in g specific asset class and
centribute towards steady, preaictasle share pnce

grewyth

We expanded our solar portfolic  wath further

additions in Zestec, waich spedialises in develop g

conmerciai solar rocflop sites in the UK These sites
are currently unasr construchcen, and we expect to
retair and The
construction of Guarderidoe. cur wnd farm n
Polard, re
expect 1o g

73}

operate them once COrmps

mains on track and on budget, and we

tart generatirg electncty by December
Farm our

2025 Dulacca  Wind largescale

construction project in Western Austrabia started
generating  electncity  after year end and  was
Cictober 2073 At the hegqimning

tiduly 2022 wee aiso completed

subseqguernily sold in C

of the financial year,
the construction and cale of Darlngion Pomt Sclar
Facm, one of the largest sclar sites im Austral a, with
capacity of 233MW

Cur successful and well-established Diomass divisicn

contnues 1o perform well, debvering stable reiurms
We addes a new sile at
i Aptl 2021 which has

pﬁrformeu well since acquisition Though it suffered

since acousition n 2015
Snetterton in East Angla
some maonths of operational downhme, followng a
gearbr»« fault, the nsurance claim for replacernent

parts and loss of revenue weas settied in full

Construction al cur Waste-to Erergy  facility in
Syrshire has progressad gs planred, with completion
cxoected i 2025 The

develoornent for four vears and will be capable Of

fac:lity  has been in

processing over 185600 tonnes por annuim of non
comrmercial and industral

household,

recyclablo

waste which would otherwize be sert 1o landhll or
exported. This waill generate 17 MW of laowe carbon

eectricily, enougn to power 30,000 homes, and it

sl e the fitst large scale, subad-free waste-1o-

energy progect inweslerm Scot'and

A 26 reserve power sites haye continued o

perr’:jrm ghead of expoclaticons, due (o low

eratioan from wind  assets ower  the winte

resulting i demand  for o addmonal

EJf_,E 23,
ation to balance the gria

R

2. Lending

Crar property lending busincss conlindes to be a
substarntial part of the Group, representing arcund
15% of the Group's net assets, comprising short- aind
megium-term secured locans 1o exgperienced pro

professionats, Our

Lnerty
average loan bock constituted
cver 224 loans this year Lo norrowers in the LK

hitter at conservative loarn to value
CLTV levels (below A0%)
end of the penod, the average

Our loans are v
0 protect against a fall in
propetiy prices At th
LTV for the loan book was 60% The turbulent market
this wear has renforced the mportance of this

strateqy, which has served the Group well Cver itg 13

year bestory. Wwe are naturslly taking a cautious
approach when assessing néw lend ng opporturdies

considenirg the changing econcrmis outlock.

Snce inceptior in 2010, the Group nas lent £2 43bn
of property loans and has had a strong record ¢
rupt mcrease in
In the current year has made 1t more

recoverno s capital However, the ab
mMtcrest rates
difficult for some borrowers 1o rehnance at the end ©
terrm Thus has

ther loar contnibuled to a srail

Increase In prosasions and, at year end, we recorded a

provision of £30m against one cormearcial lean

Though we acknowledge  this provisicn  feels

notewor thy, for context il amounts w2 around 1% of

the Group s net assets ano 1 an outler comipared (o

ouwr track record  This does however serve  to

emphasise the imoortance of aur expenerce and

approach in the sector ncwding  disciplined due
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reculted i ol renewables assels’ loans continuimig

wGomcur low nterest cosls at a rate fixed wnen

mterest rates weere [oveer

Kising interest rates are felt rmore Closely N aur
lerding business and as such we continue to take a

W can, and do,

LAutioas appreach in thie sector
reauce the nuriber of loans we wite ar allor the nisk
profile of oar leans throagh reducing loan 1o value
rabos. o pausing activty e certan narts of ke

market, as appropriate

Current trading and cutlook

Since the y2ar end, the Group has contimued to
petfonm steadily fromm an operaticnal perspective
angin lincwith cur expectations Gur growth largels
for the Croup over the medium and arg-term
retnan unchanged, and we continue to focus ©
maintaming a divers ied busmness that 1s capabite of
agsliverng predictable grovel for shareholders

In November 2072, the government anncunced the
introduction of ar Electicty Generator Fevy UFGUL
alemporary measuie to charge exceptional receipts
an hign revenues for Grodps generating electncty
Ine levy is n effect trom 1 Jaruary 2023 antl 21
March 2028 and applies o electnaty cenerated
hom ereveable, biomass and energy from wasle
scLrees. The Group was not required to pay FGL m
the penod, however ye do expect 1o pay thisn the
next financial year We had alreaay anticipated the
impact ot the returms generated from our energy
portfolic over the next five years

L proporty ending business continus T perfon

strorgly with g diverse loan book comprang 244

feany onaverage YWe loous onshortwnm lcans iour

curterit oan average term s 20 morths; wwhch
cnables us to swiftly adapt ta charges n outlook We
consider this s pa-ticularly nportant m the cunent

eConsine clirnate

T orecently consolidated regicnal Sbire bucness,
Fern Fibre Trading Lunited CUFF TL, continues 1o bueld
cut 11s netwaork to accelerate full fibre delvery in the
UK, wle also focdsing on sales ano -vatketing
actrety selling hibre proosucts dircclly to custemers
As it contimues to grow and boild outits infrastructare,
we do not expect it o report an acccurtng proit in
the coming three tc five financial years

We gre pleated o report that in Octobor 2023 the
Croup rascd L217m from exsting shareholders
through ar offer to subscnbe for further shaies The
furids raised will allewe the Group 1o grow signftly
ahead of plans in certain sectoers, howeyver we do not
expect this o mmatenally change ouar business mix,
wohich will continue to evolve i urder to cortnue 1o
target modest groesth for sharcholders in the vears

ahesd

“Our mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by the
overarching importance we place
on meeting the objectives of our

shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do
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1. Energy division

gercrate oonel frann sustamanie

Py
wodrces and sell the engrgy produced saher direct’,
Lo ndusirial consieTers o 1o ldrge neteeeres Many
ctour rerswzble erstgy s te clalis for goLeniment
lavor-

FICeNtves, et recrcsent an add nenal

Hiked, atlzed G

CROerilt e tiacinties
for cale or oracng operation At ecar end the Croupn

nad foures 1 Stes NG COnsiig D

2. Lending division

a aherr A o nesier e, se o g

St g large namber G propers prefossionals,

[Cas
and oo bharcng eoasble bos nesses 1oould ann

nnprove residenta! and corrrere as nropeles

3. Fibre division

opetate e froad

Vet and

A0S ateas of thie LK W bl the rieteeares

and connec: them o homes and bdsinosses o

oo de o e nsiomears et aftratast foee bro aabans

4. Housebuilding divisicn

Cur resdortal housebuild o operst or

GEEIDDS
stes fror desga stage to el construcucn to

eranre i desvere of quadt, workmansbin
A lrenent  ages

[IIa TS|

commeioty ab e beant of owm wlages

prowds Bign- quality

SRS nparar ¢ spaces  wvitb & frieadlys

Lending
Division

Energy
Division

Solar, wind, biomass,
tandfitl gas,
reserve power

Property lending,
development
financing

Fern Trading Limited

Fibre

Division Housebuilding

Ultrafast fibre
broadband across
the UK

Residential house
building. Retirernent
living
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Our business at a glance

The strength of the Group's strateqy s m both it
cpetational divarsity and the diverse rettnn ponles
of these Businesses CGur lending buasingss provides
flechioty and cbona retns over the short-term,
while el energy, nbre, hoasesu ldirg and retiremcrit
g cdezions offer yisityliny and stadility of returns

Cuer the longer ternm

Sector split’
Property 15% —,

Fibe 26% —

B B Owning and operating assets 85%
B B Lending 15%

ot it given try el s e esenrted on b ormnpany

b

The seale of our business 1< a key strorgih, cnabung
s to acgu re large-se ae edaolshed operatons as
well ao the opportanty (o enter aew sectors wath
mrrial tisk o the whole Groun Ly seléeclng

brusmesses with Coproncnsve basmess rlans and

stong maragement eams Tha erables s T
conunue 1o divesifty ol buaness wathiout

comprorising the guality of odr apiratons,

= Housebuilding 4%
! — Retirement vilages 4%

— Reserve power 6%

—— Solar 9%

Fern's sector
allocation
~— Landhll gas and iomass 14%

wind 22%

et shent o Ter Tras g U ied
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Our business at a glance

Where we operate
e ats peoud tha the buanaesses

st e GROGUT Miske a4 potiee

Sontr bt WL Clet gt goreatig

Clean onsgy ootho s

>anen of hermes +
ard the prowigor of Qualt, reliremiert @
v astooe fare 31

wmougt ) R loate o

T cand fas LonTrang
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

We are oroud o ooerale a Group that makes a

positive  contbbution 1o socety acrnss tne UK

gererating  rerewatve  onergy, providing quanty

retiternent lving and new homes, and delvenng

Figh specd biocadoand to underserved areas of tho
country This s aligned to our ervirormenta., social

atir gosernance MesG pohc»; wihichhs drafied and

r—\

apptoved by the Board of Directorns

Energy
We own 229 cperationad ¢
2.0090Wh a vear The

aver a ntilhon homes

eneryy sites, producng
W oernauah

Cray (G powveer

Ot combination of technologies across selar, wind
reserve poyveln, biomass and landhll gas complement

cact otherwell helpng the Ui 1o macl s energy

targets rrespeclive of e weather

The Terr Commurity Fund 14 & socsl entorprnse run
drstribute co
finds generated from our wand farrns Thes year, Ll'le

by the Group, which works 1o rrTIUrty,

Fern Comrmunity Fund has comrmitted £14m o
-

local  community  groups, stppertzed 220 [ocal

unilversity students through our Student Scholarshipg
Fund, and prowded a winter fusr subsdy Lo 740

tesgents who are loczllo the Group's sites

Lending
The 191 new lcans we advanced dur
have helped to fund the constructon of muct

needed residential properties, as well as commercial

praperty creating valuable now employment,

‘ng the year

Fibre

Within this dwasion we are busloing tall dore:

conrectivity 1o Pundrads of tnousands of properties
m small toans and wllages that do not curtentiy bave

ACCASS 10 NTEret Connmec ity nsuirg gy ae it

for modern ways of ‘-\.xvorkm:;_] ard commrumicating

mvero
fAbre netwaork o
the digdal infrastructure that thie oty needs, and

sg, we are Dulding a Jdedicated hagh speed
hismnesses i Lonaon, prodding

remiowng bandvadth constramts to ensure the

COnomMy remamns Compe tilive

Housebuilding
O hevsealding deasion sowrces over 4% of the

timber utihsed for frames in 2 sustanable way and

installe colar panels o air sourco heat :Jumps i all
properties, le admg the way ir this secior and Felping

redliice carban emissians

Our retrement villagss  prowvice figh-quality,
with close o SCC

Ve have nearly 40

contemporary lving  spaces,
homes currently in place ¥ U turther
ts o vanous stages of devcloprent, ana our
secured pipeline sites offer potential for another 300
DS LTS

£

A fnendly community i< a key differentiator for our

refirement vilages. which s why our developmerts

provide central ‘acilittes and a hub of scaal activity

far our residents




2 | STRATEGIC REPORT

Qur strategy in focus

Cur bucinesses
Mas geaeratcd bl wenans thes sean due oot

Energy

freoign our £nerdg,

e Do cwns end T Condite ms Dol ruciailh 1 Ras e polennd s Leoide

QPR ates ernergy, Ste ! cer the lorg-tenme This comibmation

LsUpply g
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Mt e netieGrk as el av constactng e ewalbe Tos key o oo strateay 10 balonce rskoand et

Poatross the GIGL actiatios

12 unerate

targer predictanlo retirns tor shareholders

SRSy, COTTnRLiNG o

of e

i "Our energy sites generated 3,069
Srerdy stos are ity i GWh of power'"

h-aquality ero

profite ror mary, CpErehng SOt D Do ne b RS TGl vl STl e

2

and revenns flation Asosnch

oare acls 1 sEcue lopg wnt Grancng oo
Gy and cosrating these hrsmecses 19 Attt a hve PRENSTEAN LAnks ol Carmpentive 1ates 10 enbaroe
e the Grouap secause of ey potental 1 debuet by o Ly Tohelns us 1o gelver The e o
preduciaris pronts cuer tne ong-ionm IS Gl shdarebicldons ex

kene.sy

While o renewanie energy Husiness started ts bie

sustainatile < Nine solan Crcrgy Sector he Crowp has bul

mdusinal conanenens or o the

drectly ro

exrerisn o

s cther adiacant techna!

netvent 1 Cf our renewaite oy 5

LA enshiore wana, beorpass and lanohll

guiahf, for gusenrent meonatiees whok means 3 CUBLCTe Dy 1Seerie [

2Bty wiIoh Rronae
porbon of the gererated energ, berahts frem rates

Dackuz o o othe Natonar Snd The Grong

Wial are Incead 0 for a spedified penda, oroe 4 therefore bensiits o anarsfic anon aathus this

auabiy iy wte s cperaieral and Qcaeditation has

e

of Athe woaahbils i iorg-ess cnargy

Lot g ek conathions o

CTery preauchon from one tec

noararted Thas has reduses so e mp

oloqy sften el

LR IR A%TS

N stongor nroduchion elseshere Th

AU S0

Ay ore

CSiteEs Dot thie UK de o Ine

UAING W giicant berefit froim e coal- o this secion

faine hotonc goscrmment | = e <

G DLSIPELS 5 ~redil ACrony 2% gites L asTl s

o e st i th arpst fov s S e e e e 3 . — , ~
O I ESTIN e 1 areet for s ke the ones reducina the nsk 1o Group profizble f ane site

an and opfiate suffers an auerabional alsrepnon

Trening arnd cperatirg eneryy sies g g fore par! of

our strate gy 2d Turentl, Makes Lp R araten,

cfthe Droups nengoscrs Trig part of the Teoap

Did you know?
If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from
London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

I addition (o our UK sites, the Groug 18 developing
sites overseas, nounschictions that we gnderstand
well These present an atbractive opporwunily as they
puld on oo sector expertise 1IN countries at an
ealier stage of renewable development Currently
we operate wng farme e hielana and France and
sclar sites in France, in addition to a wend fann under

construcuon in Paland

Duting the year we acouned the rghts 1o multiple
commercial rooftep sites through our commerda’
rcoftop sclar develtper, Festec, on which wo wilt
ECuild solsr panels to gencrale electricity for the
Lenants of thie bailding. Our sites unoer consaucuan
aroAustralia came to frunon this year, with Darlington
Foint, a large-scawe solar site sold at the start of the
vear, and Duiacca Wind Farm achienng commercial
shiordy  after year end

cperation ard L‘(—‘H"vg

y
subseguently scld in Gatober 2025

Lending

Lerding contiues to be a core part of our business
and has provided the Group with a proftable ano
cash gengtative sector over tne past 13 years This
well-established part of the Group mainly conssts of
webnich short-term

property  lending,

to o expencnccd

provides

financng crofessicnal  property
developers, buy-ic-let lendlord
firance and develcpiment inanang, which provides

snert and redium-term financing o Comparies.

cecking bridgimg

A hey benofit of e scale of the Group and of the
business that we bave built upz i this sector 5 ol
ar ity to pubygate nick through having & Large nurmier

Of leans sprcad goross reateely rmail projects to

mdivigual  borrowers, We  pioachively  manage

counterparty  ns<s  through undertaking Careful
botrower duc dligonce tsking secunty Cver assets
tepically on e first change bags andg mamntaning
conservative an to value -atics Not sl lecans wall
perforn as expected ard these measutes help to
mintise the impact of performandse 1ssues on an
ncivdual toan Thisas further mitigatzd througn the
value that we lera 1o indradual borroweers, relative to
our total loan hook, whah s spread on average

across 224 [oans,

Fibre

G thre diviaon inclades sour strategic areas - fbre
to the prermise CF1TTPTL chierpiise tore scftware
and mobile

Thezugn our FUTE busness, we arc bulding nesw
phyaical fibre retworks for commurmnes in the LK
and Yave completed new fbre nfrastruciure e
vniscrsereed parte of Dewnn, Sormerset. Dorset,
YWiotcestersinre  Yorkshire

Wiltshine,  Harmpshine,

and tne Horne Counties, spannindg hundreds of

thousands of propertes

Lending continues to be an

important part of

our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past thirteen years.
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Our strategy in focus
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Our strategy in focus

Housebuilding
Our resigental stalong Duaness, Chvia, e a rulls

setyire nouschulder which  acguires land  ano

cevelops sies tom design stage to inal constructon
1o ensure tne delwery of quality worsmranshin Clivia

strives, to delver migh quabty  and  design-ea

aspiraucral homes  comprsing a v of open

matket and afferdable homes, wath ower sites

unger constucton  Cha is headgualered nea

Beaconsheld with & gecyraptucal  footpnmt m
Buckinghamshure, 2erksture. Hampsiire, Surrey ano
West Sussox In January 2073, wee scquired Millwooo

Cicsigrer Homes wonsh has allovved cxpansion into

the adiacent regions of Kent and Fast Stsseyw,
comolementng Flvia's existing lecslons

As opart of our housebuldg division the roup

operates . ihe etrement bving secter O

rebipemrent Lying businese. Rarngeford, awrs and
operates thee tetirerent vilages in Wiltshie Nortk
Gloucestershire, 13

Torkshere and curientsy

Cornstrucing twe sites for future operations, and hag

exchangec o two further sines, soread across the

country, v th the mtenton of aeveloping these o

o future
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities  to  shareholders  They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham . -
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

Management dentfy, asscss and manage  nsks

assoriated wath the Group's nusiness oyedtives and

strategy Risks stse from extermnal sowces, those

Ahich are nberers commercial tisks n the markert,
and frory operational nsks contamed wathin the

wystems and  processes  empoyed vt the

business Owverall nsk oxposute 15 managed across

tne Groug tnrough the diversification o activiies,

Both oy sector ana geograpky

The princiga: risks that the Group ale exposed o are

descived telow, along with e mitigating achions

we lake 1o reduce tne potentizy nrpact o the nek

Wio also molude owr assessnient of whether the
licelifiood ot tha nsk has roreasec, dectessed o

it

retaire c same

Energy Division

Risk
s e 747

Market risk: .
gy cecton s e
samficant wrirulencd
a nsk ihat lorecact eve Lo
te changss in
le energy mices off take
SOUNFAcTs Of JOvErnme sy St
oue ot rbelent envirorimet
he fo.r reaced
nerventan e the requilaior is 3lse
A rs

Mitigations

ETuES

ars

(S E N I

oolentia

com Govermier t polioy
resut n redoced nootre sleas
within the group due to addaora

My

s

Operational risk:

evewr Of erergy produced
ner tran antopated due to
weather  cordtions

fray

. Hegp\ar ael”

Soo-upural

of o perfonmance 1ssa2s wih zre Jnzvalabie fora longer per od
ecapmert, wivch ray c=sult o
significa~t unplanned downtime

b L AN 8 i i
emtersa
oocior of the energy Cercrals

arpmert

Corevende
with the go

« Jopredictatilly of the weather s

dreere icat on ot techrowegies and lecation of otes
ca ol
are keptin gona condition and imirse tee sk that assets

NG cet futurs regulatory reasrement s NG Chamge

Change
ntzowhk ol A the rmoame for 3
d by oour sites
ed offrake adgresmsnts aqe
wante Uhingat on Cernfication
of curerergy iNLoT © wial Qerenited

(W=}
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Fibre Division

Change

Risk Mitigations

Market risk:
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Lending Division

Risk Mitigations
Market risk: o Ime tears prG o gtvely radnags o
niarkero ac dare prepared to enfo
loan mcves s derzat

Toale 1M abocantarvat ve loan-1o-
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cedtars of cstate This migy
mripact our Slorecver aloan
ol brougn s refinance o 2ale

Vene

VAT
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suilas @ charge over 're propst Ty Or Limer
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Group
Risk Mitigations Change

Market risk: .
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Corporate governance

Section 172 (1} statement

Tre Beard consider that they have adhered o the
reauirerents oF sectiun 172 of the Comparies Act
2006 ithe "Act and have, n good faith, acted 0 oa
way that would e most bkely 1o promate the
syccess of the Group for the berefit of its members
as a who'e (aving regard toall stakehclders and
rmatters sel cut in secton 17200&-f) of the At
1axen “nden

n the decisions durnng e year

A0 dure 2025

I the performance of s duty o pramote the
success of the Group tne Beard nas regard o a
rurnber of matters, ncluding the likely conseguence
of any decisons in the long term, and lsiens to the
views of the Group's key stakenolders t¢ build trust
and ensure it fully understands the potential mpacls
of the decsions i makes “re Boaird fulfls tese
dulies parily by delegation o commitiees and the
Boards of sabsuliary undeirtakings, who operate
within a corporate governance framework acoss the

Grous,

Arevery Board meeting o review of health and safety

across  the  group. financal and  cperalicnal
performance, as well as legal and regulatory

compliance, 1= underta<en 1he Boara also revieve
other areas over the course of the finarcal year
ncluding the Groups bus ness stidleqy, key rnsas,
stakeholder related matters diversity and inclugivity,
ervronmantal matters corporate responsitbility, and
goverrance, compliance and lega. matters.

Principal decisions

We define princizal decisions taken By the Board as
those decisions that are of a straleqic nature and that
are signihicant o any of our key stakebo'der graups
The Board consider that the followmng arc cramples
of prncipal decisionrs 1 made in the year endedt 300
June 2025

o Fuatuating and deqiding 1o Create a new strategic

arca of intc  the

development by
mobile network rrarket arg hecomimg a Mobile

expandng

Yirual Networle Aggregator UMYNAT) The Z2oard
ronsidered this opportanity as weell aligned and
complementary to the exstung ke brogdband

operatiors which we

il help to deiver Iong-1enm
valuc

The Group decdea to further expard ity footprint

mn o the  housebsldina  secon by acgurng

Wwith
values simslar of those of Elvia and the Groug

Millwecod Deaigner tlonmes, a company

Milliecod i consicered an award-winning regional

homebuilder based n Kent which bt around
100

made n Mg, 2027 1o diversify the Lroup's asset

hoones a yvear This follows the decision
hase and enternng nta tis new seclor has been
well thought out with worg-term arowth in rmnd
Thie Goard considersd the spporturity ard how
it aligned with our chijectives to make a posit ve

contnbutiien t the commurily and environment,

by buldirg new homes to addiess the UKs
shortage of propeiies
lhe Boord decded to comimence a group

recrganisation wheh rvsswed morgang the four
FTTP business into cne nowy cusiness, Ferr Tire
Trading Limited FETI waill focus on two separae
strategies, while working  closcy  logefher (1)
wholesale strateqy, owrning the Abre mfrastracture
and onboarang mulbiple 1SPs m AlPoints Tiore
Networks and 12) develop ng our own 15P service
ard brand, threugh Cuckoo Limitea The Board
evaluared the possible impact on slakeholders
including sharehoiders and observed that the new
structure would net change how the Board and
Grour ¢igaqe with sharehclders o tneir v ew of
the Group. but would be benefaal in providing
Improved governance and overaight of the secier

as well as enharong the fulure aroscects,




I
~

3| GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance

Business strategy
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Shareholders

Sharehclder welations ard genersting

valae s a key coprsasration

realang srateans decisons The pritne wvienan by

Frch e Cooup cormmomeates cath shareholdsr

sirounn e annual Eport and hoancial siaement s

e sraebholdon atn g Cul

stech am oo

underctanching of the Group s acivities and is esulis

Thie indoareston o Lablished e o

www.ferntrading.com

Employees
Tno (ues @oapeeyedt are fundaental to the
Toe Lrrectors fUlfl

b, ertrusting owors ght 1o

OLErAL Saceess Gl the Dusins

her dur, o emplo

sihsichary 1Roards
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Corporate governance

Tre Board considers Octopus Investmerts Linmted
s be a key husness partner and supplier swath
responsbility  for the provisien of - operationat
oviraght. Ananca, adnurisuaton ano company

secretanal services

Community and environment

The  provision  and  operation ol sustamatle
infrastructine s at e ~entre of the Group © sirateqgy
goals  Tnrough ats business scivities the Groups
csegks to make a postve contbbutior o the
commurty,  eryronment  ana  econoty  Cur
renevanle energy busiress 1s hepmng the UK meet
its tenewable enorgy largets, oL abre petworlk vl
give people i rural cormmunites access 1o high-
speed broadband, and our retirenrent villages create
corimurities of people i ther fater years, reducing
the strain an s nealkhcare scrvces We are zlso
Bunlding neve homes to address the LK s sharage of
properties

Business conduct

&g Directors our mtention 15 to behave resporisiely,
ensunng  managoment operate the busness wath
ntegnty and mn accerdar e wath the high stardards of
conduct and governance expected of a busirass such
a5 culs Gurnertion through our business strategy
loutined on pages 12 10 15 12 1o operate in sectars and

waonlowath otber businesses tnat < are our values.

Business ethics and governance

The Beoard 1 responsbie fur ensunng thal the
activimies of tae Grodp and e vanous busresses arg
conducted .mzormmplance vath the law srd applicante
governance  and  regulatory regmes,  and in
adbercnce  with prevailing test practice for the
relevart indishiy This ncludes revievane rtemnal
controls  ensurrig that there s an approphate
balance of skilis and expar =nce represented o the
Board and ensurng that the financal staterrents
give g hiue and fair viewy of tne state o affars of the
Group Further detal can be found in the stateiment
cof girectors responsibibties ¢ page 38 nthe year to
30 June 2023 no aress of concernn have been

flagged in this regard

Employee, human rights, sociat and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's policy on emplovee, numan nghts,
soClal and commumity ssues, envircnment policy
and ant-coruption ana bribery ratters s discussed
i the Directors Repo't on page 28 The Boaro

aclively promotes & o porate cultire that s pased

o ethucsl vawes and bohaywcurs
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Governance
Disclose the organisation's governance around
climate-retated risks and opportunities
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thhe scquistion. construction and sue diligence

process right through o the on geng

managsment  The Bodard have rcviewed ana
approwea LSG antenig specinc 1o the Group's
business that are conadered by comn ercal and
management teams, including these oparaling
in the fibre ard housebuldmg sectors The day-
to-day management ang acsessnient of cmate
related nsks  and  opportuniies s retefore
undertakan by divisicnal manageiment tearms
and reported o the Beard whero necessary,

All of the above cnsuies the Board's oversaight
and managemenrt of cimate-related nsks and
cpportunities  mclades  functions  establisned
to crovide gocd governance over the Groun's
divisions This enables the Board and subsidiary
comparnss 1o all be aligned on approach 10

camate-related risks and opportimtes

Strategy

Disclose the actual and potential impacts of
climate-related risks and opportunities on the
organisation's businesses, strategy and financial
planning where such infermation is material.

al Lescnbe the  chimste-relaied nsks and
opportun ties the orgarmsation has identhed cver
the «hort, medium and long-term

Cwven the Gioup's lond-tenm expenence in s
operatng sectors and strong links to 105 supphers,
patticulatly 0 the energy and housebulding
sectors, the Group s well postuoned Lo overcome
ncks and take advantage of opportunimas ansing
trom climate change Chmate elated risks and
opporturities are alse at the core of the Group's
strategy and me discussed right the way throuagh
the business, from Board level to tho ind vidua.
cubsidiary compancs wathin the Group Clinate
plays a parl i shaping the Group s [ong term
busiriess, strategy and finanaial slannng.

The Groups nlc division will temain rogrowwth
Chase for the rext taree to five years, and
maragerment teams considor how o manage
emiceons and nsks whule achiewing this rgpd
Growih Fibre Fas & positive tong-Term impact on

the environment g« once the intastructinre Somn

clace ard cooranng, s seen as a low carbon
f

connology A well-constructer ana cpérated

fibre correcnon facitates a reduclion i Carien
emissicns N the iong-term due to the porenital
for home waorking and smart ces

I the Group's houschulding  deasor, one
Major nsk s ensdrrg shott ans Wng tenm
CONSruClGn prosesses are managea in Ine
v th potenta, exposure to Chirmate risks, such as
flocemng. The Group ams o mitigate this risk
as al developments wthin the hoesstldmag
sector (ncludmg retrernent lving) have technical
flood risk assessments carned oudt before (and 15

purchasec

The Group s also sugect o regulatory sk
as all nomes and oevelopments must salisfy
ervrcrmenta. planrng  condibons wiich
may Charge as regulatons are mtroduccc to
supnort the UK's tansitior 0 et zerc Ths
presents the Group with the oppottunity Lo
gy above and beyond applcakle requlatory
standards for enercy efficiency of new buld
homres and become a leacer in this regars It
s impcrtant for the heousebuilding division o
satisty  all enwvironmental plannimg condilions
and seek fhancatly  vable opportunities  to
excead requlatory stardards The Grodp looks to
develop strategies around progressive adoption
of Modern Methods of Construction "MIACT
mclaaing timber frames, solar panels, air sGurce
heat oumps and electric vehicle chargrg points

where appropnaie YWhere possible, the Gronp

moves operational assets ontorenaewable onergy
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™

assets to 1
abowe  and beyond  Lthe  relevart

he ighest gualty standard and gong
requlatory
standards hj adopting AMCs will nmpact the
operaling  and  mantenance  costn

further  The

CIroup's
Group’s  cost oprojectinns are
captured at poirt of acquisitionr. and micoeels are

datedd regularly with diversAcat on of suppligns
and appreprigte levels of nsuance oblamcd.
The Groug's bicmass plants opcrate a diversiied
supply chan of feedsticcks and stratedqio stores to
enstre sufficient fuel stores. In case of falled fuel
supply from extreme weather condihions, there
trcen the

Is contractual recourse oblidations ho

sire and supphers for protecton sgamst [ose of

reveras.

Clhimate-related rsks aso have an mpact or
acccunting estimates and judgerments within the
firarcal statemenrts The (noup's bawance sheet
NCiuses ¢ decommissioning provision relatirg
to the fulure obhigation to returm land on which
there are operational biemass, wind and solar
farms 1o tien ongina: condition This accountng
estimate is detarmimed Lo a significant degree by
the future dismantling and restoration cosls, as
wollas the tirming of the dismantlement all ot
wehinch winl be

and raw matenals requned 101 restoraticn The

mpacted by physical chmaic nsks
Group engages vtk a third party to perferm the
assessment of costs 1o be ncurred, ncluding an

assessment of future climate nshs,

Deccribe the reglence of the
strategy taking inte consideraton different future

o

nclucing 5 270 or lower

oroanisation’s

climate scenanios

SCen3to

[ Group benehts fror a guickor transiicn to &
lower-carton econamy, such as in a "¢ clirnate
cathiveay 1a arnbing gloRal termperatures nareass

to weell below 2920 whilst taking the steps o

COLUre we remaln resllient to the nsks assooisted

with scensnos such as a 4°C pathway

Unoer at 50 sconanc, the worle wi l espenence
a signiicant st away fron tradiioral foagl
fLes towaros lengwanla cnergy  sodrces as
counmpes and busmesses alke impleiment streng
decarborisaticonr plans to reach net zero. Delivery
ar these gebiliors requires @ significart increase
in the pace of capral deployment irto reriewable
energy. all of which leads to a qicwih i the

Ciroup's acquisition opoortunities

rek from 3 benesfoat vansbon 1o

compettion  and

The mam
renewadble energies s flom
the potential for price  cannibalisation The
Groups strategy 1s resiiort to this as tnev focus
on haing leaders in the market and seek st
form of price

mover advantages before any

ercsion can lake stace \Mcreasmq demarnd for
the electnhication of naustnes wilo provice vast
deployment opportunitizs for renewalb.e assets,
with rising demand supportng the power price
for eecincty, miugaling prnce Carnipalisation
The Greug's housebulding secior could also
beaefit friom such a transitior by facing lower
costs oninstallation of solar parels or heat
pumns as tecknologies advance and ecome

chea por 1o acless

Urder a 4°C scenaric, it 1s assunred that the
transitioon t a loweer-carbon economy has heen
slower ard the incentives to construct ana
operate reneveables nave not been forthcoming
There 15 also the nicreased physical rick of more
extreme  weather delaying  the  intreduction
ardd cperation of rencwable assets Whist this
coud mmpact the Group's tevenue potertial ths
would discou

wodld be weli placed o take advanrage of ary

rage competition and e Group

opportunily that arose The CioLp's

slraicgy
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Risk Management
Disclose how the organisation identifies, assesses,
and manages climate-related risks.

Al
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Metrics & Targets

Disclose the metrics and targets used to assess
and manage relevant climate-related risks and
opportunities where such information is material.

ay Dhsctose the metncs used by the arganisation
10 55055 Cimate-refated 1shs and Gpportymucs
rie yuith

il do ctratedgy and sk management

process

As rnerioned under the Rick Managormen: gillar,
management tearns assess the relevant chimate-
related  risks and  opoortunities of  potental
acquisitions 10 relation 1o set artena, The £5G
Fisk Mamnx used for our energy assets has
a total score of 15 with g score of @ or more
reguired to indimate compliance wath FSC poboy

reqguirerments

by Disclose scope 1, scope 2 and if approprate
soope 4 areenhouse gas (GHDG) emissicns and
the related risks

The Groups lecation-based scope 1 2 and 3
emissiens are disclnsed in the tahle below In
accordance wath SCCR, the Grounp's scope 3
emissions nclude only those relating to business

travel

Throughout the year, we have continued o
deploy capital in expandirg the fAbre division
resthinig In an ircrease In emissions as s is a
function of growth and headcount increase. This
is highlighted by the Group's Stope 2 emissions
nsing by 5% n FY22, caused oy incroased energy
overall  emissions

consumphiorn,  despite the

reduchion acioss the ousness Wihile our fibre

companies are trocused on the end goal of

pulding a retwork the wourmey ong the way 15

just as mpartant

The increase in ennssiens fronn cur Dibre divisicn
a8 been fuly offact by reduct ons i enmissIsns
from oun reserve power sites which gocount 1ol
0% of reportes creiss ons O 26 "ESETVE SOWEr
sites provide wita, zack up power 1o the Natinnal
Grid ir tmes of pegk derand and emissions are
expected to vary year on vear, due to fluctuations
rthe cnergy generation required to halance the
grid and supplement bascload power, We have
thius seen a 5 2% redacuon e ernissicns rom
the Sriot vear in our rescrve power sifes a.one, a
function ¢t Inc sites being called upon with less
froquency.

The other pimary driver of the Group's emissions
are oul biomass plants, which account for a
farther 9% of the remainng emissions Our
bicmass planis wse a rmx O straw waste wood
chips and other fucls of naturai onging, which
also have the capacity to reygenerate 1o produce

electrnaty

Ihe Group has ftherefore ween a beadline
reduction in tonnes of COZ2 crmitted 11 FY23
compared 1o FYZ2 of S 8% pomanly dnven by
the lower use of fuel In the reserve power and
Ciomass sites that the Group owns and operates,
as descrived above, only slghtly  offset by

iIrcreases :n Fibre enmissions

FY23 FY22
Emissions {Location Based) (tCO2e) {tCO2e) % Change
RIS S 221 552 R
Srpe s ST
Srope 20074 452 S,
Total ) 228,699 242,932 (63%%)

A
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Aggregated Metrics
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Group finance review

Review of financial statements

The curgose of this report 15 to provide sddiional
explanatery mfonmanon on the finandat staterments
Iheasurng G performance. the financal migasures
that we Jse nclude these that have beer denved |

from cur reported results in order o comimate factors §

that distort vear-on-year compansens  These are |
conaderad Nnon-GAAP financial measuies
Areconcibation of these 1c the financial resuds canbe
foumd 1 note 26 of the netes to the fmanca |
SLALCMEn s :
The financial statorncnls show assete at anccrised
cost, as such they do not reflect tne fulre value that
we expect to denve from these businesses To that

extent accounting performance may differ materially
from the share pace ard may net reflect cnanges 1
the full market value of assets ¢ busiesses owred

by the Groun

2023
£000

There were val.ous Changes o the aneralional assels

cunng the vaa inciud ng the sale of Darlingten Point,

alarge solar aite in Austiala, ard B via expandirg then
south-easterny faotprnrt wath the  aogaisitien of

fAlbvoud Designer Homes  In March, our FTTR

busincsses weere successrully conscidated into one

woarid our

y
owen 1SP brand Sussequent to year end Dulacca, a

[ slrate

new Dusiness focusing eresholess

larce  wand  fanm o Wester Austialia, pecane

operaticnal - follcawing & bao-year  ConstrLction

process, and was sold for a oroht of E22rmin Gctober

N
2075

lo suppert continued exzansion, we bult up cash
reserves at year end of £15/m, whah serve to fund
she cperaticnal neads of our divisiong

(restated) Movement
2022
£000 £000 %

- 800,351 711,830
’ 82,017 194,917
S 7 {148,767} 55,888
rl\i reg ek e ob o S o 439,535 01

360,901 H.ad 22

ETT 156,919

256,415 | c';.;'/.l 1 ’}F».g

[Jet clefit 1,001,265

793,169 2NE.0596

[REEIENE S 2,366,052

2,220,920 A5 132

Financial performance
The Croup has reported a loss before tax of £149mm
for the vear ended 30 June 2022 which s a fal' from
profit of £3%im (restated; in the prion year Thsis diven

prmisily by expansior inocur fibre sector as wo g

continue to growy our assels and onelational ase, as 3
detaed further i th s report Similarly, overall EBITDA .
decreased by L8% 10 FR2m (2027 £195m), which i i

miarly due e operahonal growth e our neveer

i eltre atere ST tAs depasieatior and greorhizatier

drasions, particulariy Nbre, and a number of prosas ong
recogrised  aganst  spechic property  loans.
Additonally, there are tweo instances of extracrainary
costs ncluded in the financia staternents, which ae
not expected (G oreoconr 1 restruciunng costs of
E£13m ascociated wath the merger of fiore-to-the-

premises husinesses, and [2) impairmerts costs of
£22n, associated with tracirg assets which were scid

subsequent o year end
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Sector performance
Energy

As economs activity and giokal deimand conunaed
ad
~holesale energy phices drven by movements in
the

PIAINLAIN NG strong reverucs Ton crergy goneration

to reran ah throughout the veat, <o too

commeodity prices. Ths restied r Lo

at a.evelsimifar 1o 2022 across odr enedy sites with

reveriue aof E6Gam (2022, £E50n

Cur generation capacity remained Cons stent year
on year. as there vere no stbstartal changss o cur
enerdy generating assels Aowever production was
marginalty recuced due to Snettertan, one of cur
biormass lred powor plants, suffering some menths

of opcrational downtime foilowing & gearbox fault

FY2023

ausoviated ansarance clarm fororeplacontont

rarts and loss of reveruc was sctiled o full.

~as offset by theincrease in thie average

The impsct

price per urat (or the dresion as 5 owhcle, as
rcreased o L1077 MWhH frior L8975 MWh o n the
prior vear, a movemen: of 107

Wiole  total operaing  costs oremained  mostly

consisient year-on-year at £ 377m 2020 £ 32 /m, the
Group recnrded a £ A0mmciease i gas procusement
Costs tor reserve powear plans, driven by inflated gas
prices i the frst balf of the year Corresponamgly,
LBITGA also decreased by 13% 1o L252m 12022
F58m)

FY2022 FY2023 Frz2o22

Productien Production External External
(MWh) {MWHh) Availability Availability
fammass 991,873 105003 83.5% Ry

| andhl Tas 225,680 AP 2 96.2%

Fevsere Pr 405,802 (AN 94.6% 94 2%

Sl 569,063 94.8% P
e 876,374 92.6% ISR

Total S 3,068,792 3,099,650 S
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Houseburld ng operations contrnibuted £130m 12022

£/1me e f’_}rot_lp revendes fGr the voar reflect rg the

mnpact GHirdreased revenue m Ranaeford as veell ag

a full vear of Clvia operations BEivia sold 132 units m

the year. ard s performimg nlne wath budyget, wnile
Rangeteord mcreased its revenue by A5%

ang sold A7 units

Achanue i acccurnng pohcy resulied in the

Fangciord communal areas perg Capualmc;a as
fixred assete ifurnture, fixtures and equipment! @nd
amaortises over the life of the ste Previously, thesa
costs were immediately recognisec to Cost of Sales
tothie P

auditors ang has not resulted m

[he treatmenrt Fas beer aygreed with
a pror year
assets

restatement, however  Rangerfore fixeo

mcreascd by L15min the cunrent year as a result.

Funding and liquidity

Crur strategy wathin our renewvatle energy businesses
5 tG secure ong tetm financing at conservative
evels from mamnslream banks 1o entance retams, At

vear end we had drawn E1160m of externa delrin

this pars of e Group with a further £27 B avalable

to he drawn
This approach enaties us to acquire Businesses that

Bave, stabie characternsics such as predictable cost

base, reventie sioams, qovernment ncerives or

and as such nave o

proven lechnelogy rerrns
that without leverage would be msufficient for our
sharehcldess It alse allows us flexibility 1in financing
Odr Businesses ana managing cask flow, We believe
that faling to adopt this strategy would have a
riegative impact on business returr and sharehoder
value over the lenyg-term 802 of our interest payable

15 fixed  and

therefore we are ot sigrefcanly

exposcd o current imerest ratg volatibyy The Sroup

apples hedoe accounting for nterest rate sveaps

which means any changes in the fair value of e

ap s reconsed noreterves icash low hedge
reservel with e inetfective porior of the hedge
recogaised o the PEL The matket value of the
AW3EPNS IS recognised on the balance sheet as am asset

o oa lability, depending on whether the

Shvald o 1s

favourable compared to cuirent rates

rrangements fo

We continually cev fimancing a

enstie that 1ney are competitive ard cuumised for

the needs of the busness To ensurc casht s
managed inan agile mannern, we maintain flegble
finance ‘aci ties wa.ch can be drawn or repad o
qest immiediate business necds Spec fically, the
Croun has access 10 a Revolung Credit Facility of
C290m. which s miterlinked to the net assets of our

energy drasion The fleability o drawe and repay

funds ar shaortnct ce facilitatés effective managemert

of shiort term cash fluciuations, whech can be driven

oy seascnality of crerating working capital

Looking ahead

At the end of the Onzrraal year we cortire o
Believe that the business s positioned well to ta«e
advantage of future growth oppotunilies across its

core business arcas tnergy and lending cperations
are weil estanisned i the market ard coentinue (o
make exceliert progress with robust cerfanmances

i the now irarcal veas Provisiens taken against
loars durimg the year e o

fenced cha lenges which are not imcicative of furtaer

srlending sector have ring-

problems across other mans in the sector

Ceployiment nto hiore continues to roll ot ne
with expeclatiors. while growing 1ts revenue and
operaticnal base Sales activity in our housebuilding
division rernain strong against a challenamyg market

ard arc reportng profts n hre watk budget
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2023

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2025

P R N P A S O

For a summary of the Group's resuss, refer 1o the
Groun finance rev.ews on page 51

‘Pe directors have not rccommended oayiment of
a divicend 12022 CHilL

o o
The directors of the Company who were in office
during the year ang up 1o the date cf signing the
financial statemenits werc

=5 L atham

K lley
PO Banow
[ Arthur

S Crant lappointed 1 January 2025

SR BT Rt DT W I R

Refer to note 23 in the Notes to the finaraal

stalemerts,
R LR T E D A

Refer to the Strategic Report on page 8

T oA sousbo oot s

Refer to the Strategic Repaort on page 12,

Hopoopes e

Refer to the sochion 172 staternent on page 21

erat o Atz |

The Groups objectves and pol aes an financal sk
rmanzgement including mfermation or e exposure
of the Group to credit neks, liguicity nsks and market
nsks are set odtin note 21 to the imancsl staterncnts
The Group's princippal nisks are set oLt in the sirategic

report on page 170

IR F e e e R LM A= LW

A5 permitted Dy sectior 414 (11 of the Companies
Act 2006, the directors have eiectod to disclose
information required 1o be in the directors’ report by
Schedue 7 cf the L_arge ang Medm sized
Cempanies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)

Regulations 2208 in the strateqic report

S A o A seatpst gl ol oSt
Lorpo et v ST S0 e

The Board recogrises that a corporale culture based
chosound ethical values ang Denawiodrs 15 an asset
The Group endeavours to conduct its busness with
irfegrity, N an ethical, proefessional ard responsdile
manner customers,

treating our employess,

supghers and partners with courtesy and respect

Bove oot Db dican vd perso s

Applications for employment by disakbled persons
are given full and farr consderation for all vacancics,
having regard tc ther particutar aptitudes and
ahilites Should 2 person become disabled while
the Grolp's emrployment, every effort 5 madc ta
retain them alternative

empioymenrt,  gving

LrANING 85 Necessary
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ard of the proht or loss of tho Group andg Coimpary
for that pencd i prepanng the inangial staterments,
the direclons are reguired o

o select saitatle account ng pabcics and then apply

therr consstently,

« state whether  apulicable Uimited  <ngdom
Accountmag Standards, compnsirg TRS 102, nave
been ‘ollcwed, suniect 1o any matenal departuras

disclosed ang explained in the hnanaal stalemaents,

« make judgerments and accouning estimates that
are reasorable and prudent” and

o prepare the fnancal statemerts on the going
CONCErn fasis unless it s mappropnate to presurme
that the Group snd Comparny el coniinue in
[3118INes5

The directors are alse responable for safcguarding
the assets of the Group and Contpany and hence for
laxng reasonabie steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other rreguiarities,

I he dircctors are responsible for keeping adcguate
accounting records that are sufficient 1o show anc
explain the Group and Company's transachions and
disclose with reascnalne accuracy at any time the
friancizl position of the Group srd Company and
enablc them o ensure that the financial statements
cotnply with the Companies Act 2006

[he directors are responsible for the mantenance
and infegrty of the Company's website  Leaislation
i the United Kingdom governing the oreparation
and gissemination of finaricial statements may differ
from legisiaticn in ather jurisdictions.

S P R Rt IR E

As penritted by the Aticles of Associston, the
directors have the beneht of arondemiraty sabncis o
guahfying third-party indemnity provisicn as defined
by secton 234 of the Comparnies Act 2006 The
indcmnity was 1 force througnout the last fFnanaal

vear and s currently in force

L LA T

i1 the case of each director m otfice at the gate the
Drrectors” Report s approved

o 5o far as the director 15 swvare there 15 no relevant
whreh  the

a Group  and
Company's auditors are Lnavvare, arnd

udit informanon of

« they have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a cireclor n craer o make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and o
establsh thal the Group ang Company's auditons
are aware of that mforimation

This confirmation g givern and should be nterpreted
N accordance with the provisions of section 418 of
the Contparies Act 2006

Crost & Young TP having been appomted in 2022,
have indicated thea willingress 1o be reappointed for
anothier tenm and  will ke proposed  forore-
apeomntrrent 1IN acoordance witn section 485 of the

Companies Act 2006

The Directors repott was approved oy the Board of
Diecters on 20 December 2023 and signed on it
hehalfl by

PS Latham
Director
20 Decernber 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

MCoNSISTeNaes o apparent materal nsstatoronts,
wo are iequired 1o deterenne whether this gives nse
to @ atenal nusstatemant in the financial statements
themeelves. It Dases on Ine work we have
petformed. we conclude thal thare s a matenal
misstaterment  of the other informauon, we ae

required to report that fact,

Ae have nothing to repert i this regard

Opinions on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006

In cur opmicn, based onthe waork undertaxen in the
course of the audt

- the information given m the Shategic report and
the Drectors report for the fnancial year for
which the firancial statements are piepared s
consistent with the inancia: stalements, and

« the Strategie repert and Directors eoport have
been prepared it accordance with apphcable legal
reguirenents

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception
o the kght of the knowledge and uncerstanding of

the Croup and the Parent Company and its
arvinonment chtamed n the course of the audin, we
Fave not dentfied materia, misstaternents in the

Strateqic icport or Directors report

We have nothimg ta report in respect of the followng
matters 11 relation o which the Companies Act
2006 roequires LS O repoert G you it N our cpimion

+ adeguate accountng records have not been kepl,
or returns adcguate for our audit have not been

reconed from branches notwisiles by us, o

o the Parent Compary irancial siaterments are net
in agresmant with the accodning records and

returns, or

o certamrn declosures of Direclors remnmneration

cspecified vy law arg nol made or

o owe Lhiave not reconed ail the nfonmation and

explanations we eguire for eur auadit

F

Responsibilities of directors

Ag o explaimed  maore Taly o the  Drectors
responsilines slalemant set out or pages 38 ano
3G the Directors are respotisibe (o tne proparationr
of the fnancia. staterments and tor being sausned

that oy give a true ard far view, arg o sack

nternat corbol as the Drectors dolormine s
necessary o cnable tne preparaticon of hnaroal
stalements that ate free frer matenal srisstalemaont

whether due to fraud Or onor

In preparing the tnancal statements, the Direciors
are responsiile for assessmag the Group's and the
Parent Coampany’'s ability 1o continuwe as a gomg
corcemn, disclog g, a5 apprcabie, matters resated to
gomng concern and using the gomg concern basis cl
accounhrg wunless the Directers other nlend to
ligu date the Group or the Parent Company or to
cease operalucns, of have no redlistic alternative but
o do o

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

Our objectives are 1o chiain reasonahle assurance
abour whether the hraroal stalements as a whole
are free fror malenal misstatement, whether due o
fraud cr errcr. and to 1ssue an auditor's report that
mcludes our conion Reasonable assurance 1s a bigh
level of assurance but 1€ not 3 quarartes that an
audht corducied n accordance waih 1SAs TUKD waill
always detect a matenal misstatemert when it exists
M osstatements can anse from frawd or errorn and are
consicered rnaterialof, individually ¢rn the agarecate,
they could reasonably e expected toninfluence the
economic decisicns of users taken on the casis of

these inancsl statements
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as te what extent the audit
was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, inctuding fraud

ot

aeaulanie s e lnding fraond  are 1ostandos

S And o reEguiEle s

Cornpaail e et

DroCegures e et cur respeasin oS O otlred

Cbo deteln ineaulartes incluars tzad The

a0
tiek of raot deter tinng s mstenal roessratemont diue T

S

fraud 1= Tighier thar b ree OF rat aetechog

3L frand roay noae colibeane

resdltir g trons et

conceaent By [or cxarpe forgor s o mtentional

THsrepreso i ath iy

[T N

iregulartes,

Caonthrough calusion The exdens

Poor procotures ans Capable of cetectng

nelLamg s s getarec

cever the  prmary esporsibilits tor o the

preverticon srd detecion of aug ests o tolh

ofothe e

CReanged St qonerance

e
rmanageront

J

e approack veas as

- Ve

aptar2s an vndercandarg of the legal and
reguiatory framesorks that are applicanle o the

Caonp and dolmuned st the e s

are those that relste 1o repcitng framc

S andH e Comipalies Aot 200051

QOIS Lorned s

Trading

COITIRL NG larnesorks 2y man

qunes of manajoreert, thase cnarced stk

etranc s ang those rosponsibhe Inr legal

arid complancs procedures a5 oA, raud ngs
St

jigle reluding b ethier

Samawork 2retty, C
a forrnzl fraucd s assesomnont 1S Complensn
of te

doonmentatior o perforoaroe f the

cotronutated our chaurniey throuah reas s
folle camg

o rg rrosedares

meleretand ey of

LI N BT R T

ard

Conmderag e atluer e ot s

et

s CWalnng an wndersandro oF poacies and
prosedures i poace regarding compliano e ek
levas and requlancrs e luorg

3
rroantored ard cntorce

-

cutziung ar oo derstandira of

process forowmentiong ard to

avd raes o mclaanny progoames snd Connols
coablshed o acdess ne<s goatited o
thereise et 0o A detedh frand,

and o senie managertsnat s those

proedrarss and caontrols

o GF Board meetg minutes in thie pe

ad L e axte - gnng

o e Gscestey] The g rhulty o the oups

finar, 2l statemicnts te maslenar misstatemert

mcluding howe frand might occur by hokding &

dscussion i ine aad tres it e uded

o dentficaton o related parner

¢ Lrgicrstanding e Sronp’s bus ness, the conual

chraronmceat and azsessing e nherent r sk fro

reloant asserticns an the sgrificant atooue

lewet arcluding decuss ans stk managetrent
FCoaar ahvundarstancmny of thoase areas of the

Mrancial stalerents o

fra.

MCh veere cuslophibile o

wdas ernficd by managomant, and
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ety orthigt otherwise seek o prosent, deter o
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals
meesung our defined risk crntena based on our
understanding of the business, tested accounting
estimates for ewidence of management bias,
enguiring of members of sa2nior management and
those charged with governance regarding their
knowledge of any non-compliance or potential
non-complance  with  laws  and  regulations
that could affect the financial statements, and
nspacting  correspondence, if any, with the
relevant licensing or regulatory authorities.

A {further description of our responsibilities for the
zudit of the finan<ial statements is locatzd on the

Financal Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part
of our auditor's report

Use of our report

This report 15 rmade solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companias Act 2006 Cur sudit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the company's members those matters wa are

required o state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not sccept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opirtons we have formed.

R85

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ermst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 Dacember 2023
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Group profit and toss account for the vear ended 30 June 2023

{restated;
2023 20872
Pole 000 E000
Turnover - - - o ) - 1 o 800,351 B 7-114850
R (526,367) (486,008}
Grossprofit 273984 325822
5 R B U A YRR ol Vel (379,077) (283,126}
Operating profit/(loss) 7 ) 7 . (105.693) - 42‘696_
ORI _ 4,968 3550
o A 955 b,24G
o s b e g {1.045) 23533
sl g e " 713 130
e AN ST G alge ¥ (49,265} (28,2700
Profit/(loss) before taxation S (148,767) 55868
Tan et PHATL s, : 17.208 {17.868)
Profit/(loss) for the financialyear 31,889 38020
Attributable to Fern (132,896} 44,642
Minority interest 1,337 £,627)
-  (131,559) 38020

Sl ab ol s ar ey aciabios P 7 st the et e D adiesrer s ts

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2023

{restated)
2023 2067
S S £000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the financialyear R )
Oth;;'-comprehensive income - 7 T
- bt AR TRR IR AL RN | P 39,599 71401
Fore o e g : St o (9,093) 18562
Other comprehensive income foritilr'l;yéar o 30,506 89963
Total comprehensive income for the year o {101,053} 177983
Attributable to
+ Owners of the parent {102,390} 132,605
. 4_Non-controlling interests ~ 1,337 1,622}

{101,053) 127982
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Group balance sheet as at 30 June 2023

RIgis

Fixed assets

1 Lnohee o i

2023

£000

restated)
n02

£000

it Lle avsety o 528,874 557708
Tananle aseats L 2,035,554 1,8395430
reestrert 17 13,742 35452
- 7 2,578,170 2 486,590
Current assets S
RPN 17 263,616 184479
Tzt orsdmcluchng FIOTN e Dad LSS 17 825,068 623,876
ans atter mere Ean o aar
Caihat batis g i band 1 156,919 256415
I S 1,245,603 1064770
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year Y " (430,891) (258 264)
Net current assets o S 814,712 B06,506
Total assets less current liabilities 3,392,882 3293096
(:.-feditors: amounts falling d-l-.l-e ;fter more Wtrli'la;\:\;;;a;mﬁ’ - 16 {949,946} {993,325)
Provisions for liabilities o 1. (76,884) (78.851)
Netassets S - 2,366,052 2,220,920
Capitat and reserves
Called g shaee caoral 1% 175,876 161,662
Share preriun: acont 608,085 264 882
B rer 180gt e 1,613,899 1,635.56%
Cask flow hiedgs 91,516 51,917
T and oss acoaur (110,530) 9791
T_o;_a_l shareholders’ funds ) “-_;:378,846 2,223,821
Ser-contoiineg rerests (12,794) (2.501)
Capital employed o 2,366,052 2220520

Note 26 detanis the pnicr periog adjustments

hece consclidated firancial statemerts on pages 44 to 95 were approved by the Board of directors on

l
20 December 2023 and are signed on therr behalf by

PS Latham
[Directon
Reglstorod numoer 2601646
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Company balance sheet as &L 20 June 2023

2023 2022

: b £000 F'C00
'Fixedaséets S e

o = 2,991,990 2550978

2,991,990 2579978

Current assets o -

bt Ls 26,543 33888
L ook ard o hone 17.478 £A22
T - a0z 45310
(.:.;'edlt;ar; a“mounts falling due within one year i o (706) 1449)

Net current assets 43,321 45,861
3,035,311 2 585859
Net assets 3,035,311 2 585,839

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves

Loalen nnnlare capana 175,876 161662
ars e e e 608,085 364 882
[T I T SO 1,986,457 1986457
Pt [lsee s ane 264,893 72,838

Total shareholders’ funds 3,035,311 2585873

A

The Cotrpay has eles ted o take the evemnphon Lnger sechion 43 of i Jortpanies Ao 20050 not e

present the Company proht and loss 30 e Dmanoal pencd deall itk e tee financios

PG A GO

cuatements of e Coropany sas £1292 055 220

Trece francs! staten-ents on pauss 44 10 95 coore approved oy the Brad of directors on 20 Docomrbar 2024

arch are agred on ther pehatt by

PS Latham
nrectar

Fegiztored rumber Z26006 50
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Group statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2023

the year

Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
(restated)  {restated) funds
{restated)
£000 £'000 £000 E'000 E'000 £'000 E'000 £000
149,676 173118 1,440,257 114 G79; 136045 1.884.121 372 1887842
1 1 , 1£,505; 5,849 1344
Sa s oe Ll
o “ahz N I 149676 173118 1440257 119454, 141,898 1885465 3721 18859188
o el - - - - 44,642 44642 £.622) 38020
- - - 71401 - 71405 - 71,401
- - - - 18561 18,561 - 18,561
- - - 71404 18,561 89962 - 895962
- - - 71401 63,203 134,604 6522) 127,982
o [
Lo - 198312 - g - - -
_Shares_\ssued_d,u@gi - o -
the_——-—year =. 11986 191,764 - - - 203,750 - 203,750
Balance as at 30 June . :
2022 (restated) . 161662 64 882 1635569 £1517 9,731 2223821 12500 2,220,820
Balance as at
1 July 2022 {restated) I:I.61,662 364,882 1,635,569 51,917 9791 2,222,821 (2,901) 2,220,920
Profit for the .
financial year l - - - - (132,896) (111,226} 1,337 (109.889)
Changesin market
value of cash flow - - - 39,599 - 39,599 - 39,599
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslatian - - - - (9,093) {9,093} - {9,093}
of subsidiaries
Other
comprehensive
income/{expense) for - - - 39,599 (9,093) 30,506 30,506
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) for - - - 39,599 (141,989}  [102,390) {101,053)
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Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest (restated)
{restated} (restated) funds
(restated)
£°000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Non-controlling
interest arising _ _ _ _ _ _ (11,230} (11.230)
on business ' i
combination
Utilisation of merger _ _ {21,670) _ 21,670 _ _ _
reserve
Shares issued during 14,214 243,203 - - - 257417 - 257,417
the year
:g‘;s"‘e asat30June  yy5 476 608,085 1,613,899 91,516  (120,530) 2,378,847  (12,794) 2,366,052
MNese 26 detans the pnor perod sdiustimenis
Company statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2023
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
£'000 £000 £000 E'000 £'000
] [ T 175118 1791145 4l 2045348
[ T - - 236 236,741
1 - 195 312 -
T = I [ - 41429 236,741
Iiate = 119688 192764 - - 203,750
Lo - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1.986,457 72,838 2,585,839
Profit for the financial year - - - 192,055 192,055
Utilisation of merger reserve - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - 192,055 192,055
Shares issued during the year 14,214 243,203 - - 257,417
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2023 175,876 608,085 1,986,457 264,893 3,035,311
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Group statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2023

O A EEPUREE L T

Caéh flows from operating activities

Fioattiloseiton the tnans alyesr g botasle ot ceiens <

Adjustments for:

Toaw Cirn prohts s

Incere st e cwatls aord wnlar e ne
Interes payable ard ctace sirular charoes

Lo disprusal of subhe man

I i fronn Lasd guiel misstmenats
Avrertie gt Or T tRaltrner D iniann ble Peoe] Aoty

Nepiec ahon of tangibie e ¢ assely

[ sg rrmen: OF el e

R R P B & I ML LI L D £ IERS e P Tu T
[IaTeRL AV SRRt o

VETTRASS OO oas i artons
Inereasefideccasen e Tioditons
Blor-conlrehingirtcrs «ts

[t recevenysipart

s et

el A 3w fae

ot 2023

£'000
(132,896)

(17,208}
& (713)
0 49,264
2 1,045
(955)
& 43,991
103,754
21,670
3,961
(15,149)
{48,283)
{160,903)
105,863
12 1,337
8,528

restated)
2022

L'000
44643

17868
{1300
25270
{29,537}
(5.249)
45762
101,802
3040
(18.044)
(15,829
31,022
(173,957)
[6.622)
25,853

Net cash generated from operating activities

a0,694)

Cash flows from investing activities
Puromass of subeidiae , ardetabimas eh S as Ao
Sae fsuaradiear s wndeerak ngs and | snt sentyre

B naee of tanble gusets

Lale of intangible assets

Surcngyt of e sted meechne s
Sae ob anhsed reestoarrs

INTe test re el

(19,176)
120,521
(490,656)
80
(65.335)
171 88.000
& 713

41,897

{52,377
101,778

(372.446)

(7.222)

(124,203)
105,000
130

Net cash used in investing activities

(365,843)

(299.340)

Cash flows from financing activities
Teoweeds [om foanT ng
e st pand

Fepayments of irar 1.y

284,617
{186,453}
(49,264)

201,719
(32,319}
{32,013)

coeeds o SNane 1Ra 1R 257,417 203,750
Net cash generated from financing activitgg 306,317 341137
Net (decrease}/increase in ;:;sh and cash equivalents o (99,496)- #3694
Castiane wash eg gty a3t the by g -of the yeal 11 256,415 172478
- xchare e o '|i:--.‘\l ta-h ;md cash sqaonts - 724 243
Cash and cash equival;n{s at {h;;nd of the year - B 17 156,919 B 256415

MNaote 76 detalls the pnor ponod ad;ustrmerts
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Form Traching Dimeed ine Sormsan, Foga onvatd Do paiy Unuted ou skhares angd ncoiponared o 1y M,

The coripany s denidilean Dng o0d tne United dingdom and registered

Lrder cnmipars numlen

A030 Tre addres, ot the veQstioea WHce 5 a8t e oS5 HClbom andon saglard, fo T 25T

Statement of compliance
The &

thie Lrited “mgdom accanring Stacdarms, includ ng Tinaral Repoebreg Steadard 1020 Trs Fiens an

Sl ard nd

crnal Lrar Cacstatemenis s fhern lrading Limited ha e b TIL ISl v

cen prenared

Feoorina st da d sophcable vyme Jarca <madors ang the Pepushe of veland (TRS 1 arnd the

Coirpargs &

Basis of preparation of financial statements

I Dass under tne betencdl costconLenlior. A5

The fingricsl staten onts I R el A Q0N O

“ran of certatt aaraal assets and Lasut es measured at far value ana n accordancs

rrodifies by fhe reaod

wath the Caompae: sct 2000 ard appboable arcos ing stardards in the United Fogdsm Tre circiral

L g nohoes, winch baw pbeen apphed Lonsistertly Wrcugnont the pear arc sot oul heleay

1

Fthe annual toaceal ctatemente Certam compziies of thete cubaichance o are (ated

soterents o0 the resalts of sl subscianes,

ned By Forr Tragmg binciled as

st
-

A e 2027
i

N role 29 Nave taker the exzn phan from ar audit fon 1k permittod b, section

‘
o2

A70A Of Comparies Act 20060 In arder o allow otake e aod? exemption the parent

S
i

Corpanes Aot SO05 of all rhe

SO, has orven aoslanlton, Juatantee oo boe s

o oof 30 Joge 202

cuetanchng net habbhics o5

Going concern

1Mo Grod’s and the Compsny < bauness activhes tachaor aath the factors Teeoly, o sifect s futare

w4t 15 The finanasl

Snent per mance sed posbor are cel owd the Shatey o Reoot on pa

1 lac ifes are dosentedan the franc

N

cosnon of the Group Ly Bosihien and borroe

S0 The prmcizasl naks of the Growr arc s=tout o0 pages 1L 70

ihe Dhrectar parfory, 310 aneusl goinrg carcent reves tnal consigers the Cinup's abut, 10 et inanaal

Zh

obhgations aa th & dale that the financa stateents have

o sigiiad

Ve ine challer g miarker condite serient fo deto mne g irier

Atz tine alvll, ol i

SErm o Qe ananT U s MEee et IBtEN 30T Gt A COrsSuen s s g

S LS nudnsss nks g

e B
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Statement of accounting policies

n reaching this conclusion the Diaciors have reviewead the hinancalbimpact of the uncerfainty n the reus’s

balance sheet, profit ana loss and cash flows vath spec io consideration alven to the follcnang

Areverse stross lest was perfonmed on the hasc Casc 1ore2ast 10 aseertain what scenar o8 ok result nnsks

te the Groups ligudity pesiion Tne test shoveed ever i an unlikely seer

stio of a sigrificent reduction of
revenue of 40X the Grour £ able to sustam ts corrent oporational costs and mest all babililics as they fali due
for at least & year hrom the date of sgnmg these inancial statements when uthsng the ava lable faclimes

withir the Group

The Group bas a number of firancng faciltics hat contan covenants requnrg the Group W maintam
spec:iied financial ratios snd Cornply wath certair otqer Ainancal covenants These ingncisl covenants are
tested at least bannualy, ano, at tne date ¢ thes report, the Group s compliance aath all s iinancial
covenants Stress lests on reascnably plausble scerarios such as a sarficant reduction in ERITDA of 822
over ime have been used 1o assess the covenart reguarernents for the at least the next tvelve manths and all

covenants have boon forecast (o be met even unaer e stress test scenanc, 1 the gang concerm penod

AL 30 June 2043, the Group had avalable cash of FISTn and qeagicom avalable of £1%m including a
revolying credit facinly of LE90m Detot of £217m 15 due to mature 0 less than ore year with the remander
of E941m payable in reore than one pear The Group's *aalbties, -epa,ment dates and undiavan armounts oo

set out in Nete 16 Loans ard Bonowinags

Key sccounting Judgemert and estimates have been made witn consideration given to the current cenaric
owtlook Hey esumales include loan recoveratilty, valuation of work in pregress decomImIssioning provisions,

rmparrment G° goodwill anc imvestiments, busness combinations and hedge accounung Detals arg <ol out

on pages 50 to 60

Based on the above assesstnent of currenl econonmc conditions and the impact o g Sroup's finardial
postion, lguidity and financiat covenants, the direciors have condluded that the Gionp and the Corrpany has
adecuate 1essurces o continue: in aperaticnat cxistonce for the next 12 moenths Thus, they continue to adopt

the gong concerr basis of accounting in prepar.ng the armual finarcial statements

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 aliows a gualfyng enrty certam disclosure exemphions, sulect o certain condihons, which have
been complied with, nciuding notification of, and no ohjection to, the use of exen ptions by the Company ©
sharehiolders

Ihe Comipany has taken advantage of the following exempt ons

from prepanng a statemenn of cash flows, on the hasis tnat it s a gualifyine entity and the consclidated
statement of cash ficws, Included in tiese financial staternents, included the Company's Casts flows

v fromithe financal nstrurment disclosurcs, reguired under FRS 102 paragraphis 11 39 10 11 484 anag paragraphs
12 26t 17 % anthe mlormation is provides i the consaldated fimaraal statement

N,
HESRE

vl

Lres

s from disclesing the Company key managemen: personnel cormpensation, as required by FRS 102

patagraph 33 7,
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Basis of consolidation
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Turnover
The Group operates o namber of classes of pus ness Revenue s denved by the follaw g

s ENICTOY
Turnover frem the sae »f clectncty generated by solar fams, wins QeReranng aseets, reserye Sower Slants
and piomass and landgfll sies 5 recogrized o an accruals Lasis n o the penco 1 which it is generated
Roveriue from long-term govormment backed offtake agreemmerts, such as the Renewaple Oblygatior
Cernhcation [ ROCY schente are azcrued o the zenod nownoren it reates to Turmover fromy the sale of
fertiicer by ciorass ang landfll busimesses i recogised on physical dispatch

=

« Lendmg
Turnover 1epreserts arange ment fees and intarest on lears provded to custamers, net of any value audeo
wax Loan interest 15 recognised on an scciual basis in ing w th contractual terms of the loan agreement

Arrangeiment feos are spread over the Dfe of the loan to which they relate

+ Hibre
Turnower 1s reccynised at the far value of the consideraticn recered for intermet connectraty and related IT
services provided inthe normesl course of Cusiness, ana s showr net of YAT Turnover s recognised based

o the date the cervice 15 provided,

s House buldimg
Turpoyer is recogsed on legal completion of the saw of preperty, land and comimercial spaces Tutnover
froem houstg asscoiation contracts 15 rccognised by eference to the value of work completed as a
proportion of the total contract value, Tumover for retrerrent ving 15 recogrised wihien the signincant nisks
aned reveards of ownerskip of retrerment properties nave passed o tne buyer ion lega: completion), e
amount of revenie can be recogrrised reliably, and Lis protable that the econamic Bereliv assodated with

the transacucen vl low to the entity

Employee benefits
The Group provides a rarnge of penehts ta empoyees, v udhryg annual senus arrangermearns, paid holiday

anangements and defined cortibutor pension plars

i. Short-term benefits
Short-term benefits including nohiday pay and other sumilar nan-monetary benchits, are recogrised as an

exnense In the period o which the service is recered

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A defned contnbulion plan 1€ a pension plan under which the Group pays feed contnibuncns info 2 separate
entity  Once the contribations  have been paid the Group has ro furthor paynrent obligaticns,
The comtnbunons ars recagnised as an expense when they are due Araounts not paid are snown i accruals
I the baance sheel The astets of the plan are beld separately from the Groupin ndependently adirm stered

tunds
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iii. Share-based payments

Casti-sethied shise -

s e rn2asured atfar vane g the baance snee dae The Group rac g ises

7
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Tace boen enacied o substantieer: eractos by the Calanse dheet Jate

Business combinations and goodwill
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Statement of accounting policies

Goodwill recagriscd represents the excess of the far valuc and drectly atmuiutable Costs of e purchase
consigeralion cver the far values 1o the Group @ ntercst i theidentificble net assets, habuues and contingent
lak lities scquired

Cnacauiaior, goodwall s allocated o cash gererating umits TCGLUTST that arg expected to beneht from
1he combination

Coodwill s amertced ovor its expected useful hfe vwhirh s determ ned based or the estimiated Ufespan of the
assers aoguned Whete the Grous s unabwe to make a reliable esuimate of usetul Ife goeawll & smorticed

over a penod not exceeding ten yoars Goodwll is reviewed and assessed for mpairment mdicatars or ar

annual basis and ary impairment s charged to the proht and loss

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assety are stated Jt cost less depieciation. Deprec at on s provided at rates caicalated 0 winte
off the cost ¢ fixed assets, less el estirnzted residual value, over then expected useful lves Depreciation
commences from the date ar assel s brought into service L and and assels in the course of construction are

net depreciated Tangible assets are depreciated over ther estimiated usefu lves, as folloys

Laﬂd andg t u\lquﬁ 2%t 4% straighi ine
P';W?r Stal\r‘l“f 3% to o strav;l 1t line

N
50

Ptar.t ang miachirery

3 5 % stra\ghr me

Melvwork assets 4% 1o 6% sIraight lire

Assets inthe course of corstruchion aie stated al cost These assefs are not depreciated until they are availasle

for use

YWhere factors, such as tecnnciogical advancersent or changes mimarket prce mdicate that residual velue o
wseful life have changad, the resdua value, useful lfe o depreciaton rale are amended prospectivaly 1o

eflert she now croumstances The assets are rovicwed o mpairmert f the above faclors incicate that the

carrying amount may e imparred
Galns and losses on disposals are detenmined by companing 1he proceeds wiath the carrving amoeun® and are
recogmsed within profit or loss

Intangible assets

Intang:ble assets are stated at cost less accumulated amorbsat:on and accuntuated mparment lcsses
Armorusation s caculated, using the straighl-ure method. to allocate the deprediable amount of the assets o

thelr residual values over ther cstirnated usefual ves, as follows

2

Dewvel cpment mght< o and 50 years
e rt are 21 10 years

Ararlisation expenses are i laded in admnistrative expenses. Developrrort rights relate to plannimig consent
to buntd @ solar fanm ang a wind farms acquired o0 acquisnon

YWhere factars, such as changes i market pnce, indicate that residaat value or useful Lo have Changed, the

residial value, useful hfe or smortisat onrate are armended prospestively (o reflect the aews arcumstar

The assets are tegiewed for impainrmert of the ahove faciors indicafe that the cdrnyng areount may

be impared
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Leases
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das AP A Tnante leate S an L shing leave

TN rancter substaanally A e raes a0 resards g asntEl e Tanerstig dre clacsf
|

asset and Qeprcoated Cuer e shiorton of the 1ease renm ara the estirrateg vaetnd ofe 2 the assct As ets ae
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Accrued income
Accrisd ncome on loans is calculated at the rate of interast set out i the loan cantracis Fnergy ncame s
aocrued over the penoa r which it has been generated

Deferred income

Deferred mconie 15 recogrised in ace ordance with the tenrs set ol in the contact Deferred incomce s

leased to the proft and oss account in the pencd o which Lrelaes

Financial instruments

The Group has chiceer 1o adopt Sectiors 11 and 17 of FRS 102 respect of inancial narunants

Financial assets

Basic hnanaal asscts, ncluding bade and olher recelvables and ©ash ano Bans balances are runially recognised
at transaction prce. unless the arrangement consttutes a finanding transaction, where (g fransacton s
measured at the presert value of the fullre receipts mscounted at a mar<ct rate of nterect Such assets are

subsequently carned at amortsed cost using the effective ntcrest methoo

eClive

At the end of cach reporting pernad inanc ol assets measuies at amartised cost are dassesssd i1 ol

cvidence of imparment If an asscl s impaired the imiga rment i0ss s the alfference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discountad at the assets or gngl effective inicrest

rate The mparrment [oss 15 recognised .noproft or logs

Cther Fnanoial asscls, including mvestrrents i cguity instruments which are not subsidianes, assuoates or
ot ventures, are initialy measured at faie value which s normally the transsctior price Such assets are
subsequently carned at fair value and tha chaages ir far valus are recagrised in profit or lovs, except that
Mvestmerts in eguty Imetruments that are not publcly traded and whose tar values cannot be measured

reliably are measured at cost wcss imparment

nancial assels are derscogn sed whon lal the contractaal nghts Lo the cash flows froim the asset e<pre ol

arc Sertled, orib) substantially all the nisks ano rewards of the ownership of the asset arc fransferred to another
party or [0} control of the asset hag ceen transierred to arother party whao has the practicai abil ty to unilsterally

sell the asset to an unrelated thid party wthoot mnpesing additionas restrictions

Financial liabilities

Rasic fmancial labilities, including trade and other payvables. pane leans, loans from fellow Group companies
and preference shares, are initially reccomsed at transaction price, unless the ;m‘awgm‘nc—nt constitutes a
financing transacthion, where the debt imstrument 1s measured at the present value of the future receipls

discounted at a market rate of interest
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Cobs insunorenss are sabe=auently - avicd st anorsed cost pang be cffechive leres ate method Fees
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Key accounting judgements and esiimates
The prepatalior of Anancal statermnents mocomplance with RS 1027 reguires the use o Caertain crincal
accounbing estimates U alst requires mianagemont 1o exercise Judgoement o applyng the Comnpary's

accourting pelues  Bstimates and Judagements are conunually cvaluated ana are based on Fistoncal
expenence and cther facters, mclud no crocctabons of future cvents that are believed 1o bo rcasonalle under

the cncumsiances The kev estimates and judgernents i preparing these inancial staterrents are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate}

Loars ana advancos to Customiers, inc.Lding essociated accrued iIncome balances, are 1oy evecd lor mparment
on a biannual bas s Inconsidenng the need for a grovsion, maragement defernuing their pest estimate i the
expecten future cash fows on g case by case basis A this estimale relies on a certain numbor oF assumatic.Ns
ahout tuture events which may diffor from actuzl oulcomes, includimg the borrower's abilty o repay inerest
and capital due i fullre pancas, this giees se 1o udeemert as fo whcther there 1s a shortfall hetween the
carrying value and the fair value of the debtor balance

Marnagerent rote thal provsions aganst lears and agvances 1s a rfical estimate and have herefore
petformed sensit «dty ar

S8 on the provisior The results of the sensitwity analysis conciude that ¢ charge
of +f-cne per centinthe amicunt prow ded agamst the estimates balarce at nsk would have resulted n £3 6m
less/mote expenditure being charged o the income statemen: during the penicd See naote 13 for the carryirg
amaount of the debtors and provisions at 20 June 2023

il. Vatue of property development work in progress {'WIP') {estimate)

Propony development WP 15 joviewed for imparment on a pencdic basis. In considaring the need for s
provision. management deterrmine thor best estimate of the recoverable walue Mamagement engage an
exne cxternal valuer 1o provide key assumptions about future events winzh may d ffer from sctual outcomes,
mcluding property valuations rate of sales and cevelopment costs,

These astrrates give tse G udgement as to whether there s a shortfal betvecen the carryng value and the
1air value of the balance as at the 30 June 2023 Post year end maragement have reviewed Lhe assumplions
Jsed to dotermine the valug of property development WIP and have abserved 1o changes in performarce
that would mmipact the valualion as at the 30 June 2023 See note 12 for the canrying amount of the property
developrren: WIS

iii. Purchase price agreement {(Australian entities) (judgement)
The Greap cwns one energy generating sabsidiavy 1m0 Australis which hae entered into purclase pree

L Yalte]

agieements (PRAS) in 2019 and 2021 The PRAs nclude a contract for differences "CfD° wherely e
cubsidanes payfreceive amounts from the customeor based on the differences between a hixed saiing price
and the actual prce for electricity sold to the Australian energy market. The directors believe the cant-act 1s
outside the scope of FRS 102 section 12 a5 11 1s for tne sale of a ron-hnancial item and tne CiDos typical for
such arrancements Therefore it is being accounted for unaer FRS 102 section 22 as & revenue contract with

variaile consderalion, rather than revaiung the entire cortract o fair value

iv. Business combinations {estimate)
Ihe cost of 3 BLsiresy cominaticon 1s the fair value of the consideration aven liab lies incuncd plus the
costs directly attnbutable to the busness combination Farr value of thaose combmations s a key estimate and

rmore details are provided o pages 54 to 55

o2
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¥. Decommtssmnmg provision (estimate}
e
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Lot

French Solar (judgment):
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vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
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s sk The esumrated precont valae o teve L sensit et e

oLt

Sthoratc used mothe cal

satcre sl of shick require mangasrant 5 ;U:l-:wrwerlt lestng of the

[Raletsla

AN I La T PEs neer | e g gt

ANAISICIRIb RS res‘n_n-‘\-'\g AN

osape st thie alle o

Lhanagernart o

petforrmeg
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i ST

Analysis of turnover by category

2023 2022
- £'000 £ 000
T ases 0 azaoa
roreserie poel annl e 393,562 365,958
Y CESTANGNG  bIGniass s A 212,158 223,526
Healthe e Sperateny” 54,849 45978
rlcing 74,932 25,034
16,237 8930
800,351 711,830

s e GRS UVE LTITTUEAVE C aa Fo B s i fe m R TER 0 oW LB aT A T

Uncladec i naoee o Hesdboare Speorabons s D00 im0 vl LD Apeiveahin: to e sale el st wilagqe s
ara BEeto Bin 2070 F0A Gmnin e atior to servces

rerudered

Analysis of turnover by geography

2023 2022
B £000 £'000

crrT T 669,180 6039l
127,287 84433
3,884 23,486

800351 711830

Other income

2023 2022
£'000 £000
LicLrdaied damate < ard nsiraroe proconds 4,968 3,550
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2

Trg s clated atter charamgac s S

AR RN VS B

IR TS T AL

e bater e
ST S L T B A

Ly frernes o e T 7

2023
£000
43,055

936
103,754
21,670 -

53 45

1,129
564
507
650

12,677

815
246
482
7772
13,784

SIS T R S

2023
£'000

" 94,557

2022
£000
854752

A ST, 10.168 7041

VAR et 3,304 3233
108,023 9h706

[he Group ereades g celired coninruhion schieves for 15 erplo,cos m the K The amount recoarses as

ar expanse for the defined cortnbut or schcree s shiceat o the tamie abowes

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2023
Number
) wll;mﬁ;‘MP l 103
851 631
5
1,923 1666

2022

Mumber

R

Th= Coovpar onad oro oo o pho,on acher i ar Tore o ors s )

e pendendod SO e

PR OICIT 1

S

AN



4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2023

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

N AR

2023 2022
~E'000 , FO00

. mmv a e e - - - ORI, e . P . S

Tl 293 176

R

Lurmg the vear ro perskon conthbuticn: woere made e respect of the direclors 12025 none:

The Sroup has ne olner koy managerient (U727 nione

A number of subsdanes of the Group operate & cash settca LTIP to gualfying emoloyees, whoreby
eirployess rendar seraces in exchangs for cash the amount of which s ccwermined by reference to thie
valuation of the underbang subsidiary, The fair value of the lability for the awards made 15 measued at cach
reporting date and at the settlemenrt date The fan valuc is recognised over the vastng pered The arount of
SRnense recognised takes e account the best avallable estmate of the nuimber of Lnits expected to vest

under the service ard portomtarce condimens arderlyng cack award aranted
Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees
2023 2022

Number of Numper of
awards awards

A E T ] e o ' 3,678,314 1,914,751
it dure) he oy ear {122,417) 1./635.563

Clbsing outstanding balance 3,557,897 3.6/8,314

L i S AR

[ Salaliyts

RS

e total charge for the year was L3961 000 12022 £3 1330001 and at the 30 June 2025 theore was a bability
of £5.464 000 included withir Creditors greater than one year (2022 £2.407000!

6 vt

Interest receivable and similarincome 2023 2022

o ] N £'000 £000

713 130

Interest payable and similar expenses 2023 2027
{restated)
o £'000 £000

[rieren oo bar koo ngs 46,322 23907
e 2,943 2,598
P ons or denval o2 Am0nmial st ety 0 (1.235)

ol 49,265 252/0

RSN a¥ | SIS TN
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7

a) Analysis of charge in year

{restaten
2023 2022
£000 £a66

lCurrélnt t-ax: h -
O T L T KR IS RT TS I I ATEA o | S L AR ] (99) i267)
T L L L P I A I 623 AT

[rd= 51 g smor o 2,089 5641

TotE et tye g e 2.613 10,114

Deferred tax:

S e ceserea b e dire e e (25,748) 6227
TN CR T ST It e A I SIS B 7,285 (3741
Fileor o Jrgrese vt 1mes (1,358) 5,268

Lallldstero g (19,821) 7754
Tax cha;gé on profit/{loss) on ordinary activities (17.208) 17868

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax saocasend [y the rearislower 020 highorithan the stendard rate oF coaoaration tas i ihe L af 200

9T The differenoes are exnlamcd bolow

trostated)
2023 2022
£'000 £000

' (148,767) 55886
o (30,497)

Profit/ (lossi before tax

10,614

I B T o S Ol L T IR SRty 12,874 11,723
e (5,407} (868)
LR IO IS B T N TS P UL SR (892) 18102
: e e e 7,896 (545)
[ E AP TI TAN CR IR LS (1,1.82) 1041
Total tax charge for the year (17.208) 17865

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

Tric mwarte 2ot 20 eratiea oo D0 dume 20 mimreater s oy
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8 5.
Software Goodwill Development Total
{restated) rights
Group £'000 £000 £000 £'000
lcést“ e e i e+ i i £ ook s 8 8 ¢ e e vt e
NI 20 3,089 743,456 15,314 761,859
Ao querelibeonah s ey 6,612 6,565 - 11,810
Lot AT ot A
2.047 14105 - 17,519
- {3439} (10,216} {(13,655)
Garm on fraslauec - - - -
At30 June 2023 11,748 760,687 5,098 777533
Aééumulated amortisatgn -
Aol duey 2007 119 202,475 1,557 204,151
[enrsale (22 - {1442 (1464
Locs or tanslaton - 1,981 - 1,981
[y peve - 836 - 936
Chatcre fon g et 1.657 41,263 135 43,055
At 30 June 2023 1,754 246,655 250 248,659
Net book value -
At 30 June 2023 9,994 514,032 4,848 528,874
70 June s ) 290U 540951 13757 557708

The gain on translaton of foreign currency denomnated goodwil s recogrused 11 Sther comprebhensiee

ncoIme Arnortisationr of goodwill s charged to adrm nistraton costs

Details of the subsidianes acquired durnig tne yesr ended 30 June 2023 can be found irowe 27

Curng the yoar the Group dispased of a solar farre 1 Australia Development nighis relatng 1o this sale were

E1C.2rm v th accumulates amaortisation of £1.4m

Impairment ¢ £0.9m has been recogrised on gocdell (2022 £ 79my

Mo agsois have veen pledged as

urity for hab bnes at year end 077 none!

The Company had no rtangible ascets at 30 Jure 2027 12027 nonel
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g 3

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction
Group £000 £'000 E'000 £000 £'000
tostl . R e . e
10,233 2i8071 1725911 118686 210170 72,504,371

—ro e 8458 1743 48,388 138,061 357053 548,743

- pats) - - 469

R S - 12.254) - - 13,294)
R - 122 (23357 20,331 (73,2596) 192,189)
Cooooae - - (24T ERE) 11,749 L0 (245,218}

18,991 320,987 1,508,751 275,329 588,824 2,712,882

At 30 June 2023

Accumulated depreciation

[ELIN IPTN . 4554 107182 A84.742 4417 610,641
SR T e 1HRZ 15,604 72130 14127 - 103,754

BRI - 18 115,957 - (15,232)
25,8271 {15.750) 447 - {41,130)
A= 2,620 - - - 21.020
IRV I I - - 1,355 - - (1,325)
At 30 June 2023 7 7 1,669 122,811 533,847 19,001 677,328

Net book value
At 30 June 2023 17,322 198,176 974,904 256,328 588,824 2,035,554

L 5,940 215882 1251169 114269 3100170 1.89343C

sothin taeg B.C asssts are Capita e o Erng g e aeset mfo use

Inc et can ng amcurt of assets hicld under inaace leases ncudod noplant nizch nere Falures and rnngs

e B D foy

[E—
o]

15 Fo 2027 £51 TR U0 mcludad i neteeor

—+

Shanete equintment and decclopment

AR LD sr nored

Tt

ool orpart; Nad e tanoble ascets st 3t an

\,
T
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Unlisted
investments Total
Group ‘ - ) F'Opq ) E£'000
C?.)st and netb‘)b&kvalue e v e enn wes e o B e e SERESAA e e A % s e e ehan s
a7 July e 35452 35452
A licne 66,250 66,290
ClEpanals (88 000) (88,000}
) S 13,742 13,742
- B T - ) 35,;1_52 T 35,4?2__
Subsidiary
undertakings Total
Company . 000 E000
cost o T Ut
A1 R0 June #0007 2539978 2535978
Addite 452,012 452,012
Lrsnezale - -
At30June 2023 T ' 2,991,990 2,991,990
Accumulated impairments S 7 7
NNl PR
Meersa chimnparments - -
[RRTSTEYI RaR ANt A} - -
At 30 June 2023 - -
Netbookvalue S
At 30 June 2023 2,991,990 2,991,990
EUAC e 2022 2539978 2539978

Detals of related undertalangs are shiown in note 29

Linlisted investments compnse the Group's holding of the members’ capital of lando LLF, 2 lending business,
and 1ts shareholding in Sracker Trading Limites Fern co-founded lendc LLF 0 Gotober 2012 wath the
Intention of conductirg a proporhion of its future trade through the partinership Addiions and disposals of
urlsted investrents relate ta investments and divestrnents in Tendo LEP i hne with Form's cashrequirements
and to utiise surplus funds Fern has a small shareholdirg in Bracken Trading Limiited from uime to tince Ferr's
irvestment r Rracken Tradicg Limsted at 30 Junc 2023 was EMILIE0 June 2072 Bl The directors do not
consider Tenda LLP or Bracken Trading Limited to be subsidiary undertakings of Forn Trading Linited
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1:[ : [ i - ! (-
Cantomcladdes cash o har d and degos s iepaane o demand

Sestricted cash e treients wash for o i the Group does 0ot havd mimsdiate s ditect s cess o forahicn

reculator s o l2gal reqanemeatsslnct e Lee ol the cask
Group

2023

e e EO00

104,744

2022
£000
195,803
60,597
256415

Cash at bank and in;;nd

Rectnicted cachs Cornpnscd of LNl neld in ooy ard £52,175.230 G Cash heldhin sabsiqianes vaih Siranmual

distnibuton wand o
Lompany had o cash balance of BEL AR ONT ac at 30 Jaae 20245 nane of whicn sas restnoted 12027

€422 0dul

I he

1z - ¢

Group

2023

. £000
1978

2022
£:000
1,534

263,616

1t st ale 27,132 26023
= 234,506 156,918

184.47%

Thie amount of slacks recoyrised &t an crparsc cunng the pearn was 215 (82,000 72

Ircaded m the ! (7 % nasanta fuel

LONGznz2 L9282 000

| ~pare parts and corsumab es steok alae @oa provacn of

stock 207

feve ceanrard, snd € te specfin prodariens

rncairect renogrused durng the —a0 an sock w2zl raaet Mooeertor o nas heen

Ctor hab iteee o2
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13100

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
irestated)
' ' o £'000 £'000 £'000
Amounts falling due after one year CoT T e
Lo ara i anv-ind 05 10 Jnier e 141,927 137662 - -
Fre pagyl™ 0t 18,714 - -
Amounts falling due within one year
Leans arnd advanes 12 usto, e 297,609 223239 - -
Traoe coste - 26,075 42050 14 392
ALt Cead g related ranbios ecie 20 - - 21,227 32,950
Citheer debil s 21,338 20,1%7 494 5843
2 PO i 3475 - 4,624 2.527
e vatice s o polanreats et 210 108,164 55126 -
FIe P oty B0 a2 s e 189,146 145,602 184 176
Aesety Neld for ressle 18,620 - - -
. 825,068 623876 26,543 35,858

Loans and advances to customers are stated net of prowsions of £34942000 12022 £13 8740000
Frepayments and accrued income are stated net of provisions of £20,42 7000 (2022 L7732 000)

Assets neld for resae arer relation to One |leaithcare whare targibie fized assets nave bheen neclassifed 1o
current assets as ot 30 June 2027

Mo mierest is cnarged onamounts owed by group uadertakings, as the outstanding balances are unsccured

ard repayable on demanc (2022 none}

MNote 26 details the onicr perncd ad ustments,

i i
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i4 - 1 o o

Group Company
2022

2023 lrestated] 2023 2022
£000 £oon ‘ £'000 ) EUU_:L)
Tk beses aed ot s 161 a2 w2 - S
Tande L 50,183 58,004 1 6
bt el fnsen Tt - 10.27% - -
T e e 52,303 24362 - -

Firaris e e e 29,844 2428 -
81419 75,465 699 37E
430,891 258,264 700 444

IS SVB AV TSI Lo P RTals TR DRI

A5 e L e

Group
2023 2022
Amounts falling due between one and five years £'000 £'000
lors G e e T T T T T eg ke 383070
R TR TR e 2,052 5,859
I T Aol 2,274 6,264

704,846 395253

Group
2023 022
Amounts falling due after more than five years £000 £ooo
Farl cam o n ke et o T T aaesee T T Tersate
Froa fe mutsn aow Trn 4,578 24676
) ) o ’ - 245,100 598,092

Toatsb ot s fhirg oue alier ncre g e s 949,946 923325

Tre Zormpar, Pasrm drad tors e rogreatsr shian ong | ear

S Jnis oo d L relsted el e g wnseCwosd o reres beane 2osnd repa catle S deetann
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16 v ey he Db

2023 2022

Group S £'000 £'000
ot b e Sl he el - 700,520 383070
Cue oy e than s vears 240,522 573416
1,158,184 1.044.218

The Company had na bank loans at 30 June 2023

The bank loars are secured agamst assets of the Group with each loan as held by the subsidiary shown below

2023 2022
, Interest rate £000 £'000
Winers Foergy iorrntes & month SONIA plus 1.60% 411,016 429,138
Cedar Ereroy e arcd Infrasmror bne Uieeren SONIA plus 2 Q_O/°_+ 7% 125,000 -
i nen-utitisation feg
- o 3 month EURIBOR plus
Ches Dnerdgy, 2 oim ted 120%, Fixed rate 170% 26,609 30,946
Flics Enetigy = Trando 885 1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR 55,553 56.07%
foscine rarg e, e 6 maonth SONIA pius 1.50% 281,938 284,348
Uiaraneyon Pount Solar T Fry oomted 649% (swap rate on 4'594, N - 114,026
) 1.9% marqin}
e Lon Resesekle Bregy LR L e 6 month SOMIA plus 2.5% 72,717 85718
Dbzt ca sk Haoldde o PTY L 17% + BBSY 156,563 31.614
Liwis 1o e Lirn ted 5% + SONIA + 2.5% non- 18,749 12,306
utilisation fee
Pl Desgrer Hormes Lirmited 3% 4 SONIA -'.—.124 o 10,000 -
utilisation fee
Zegiec Assrt Managa et Lintiled Fixed rate 2.5% .1 43
1,158,184 1.044.218

SONIA replaceds LIBOR as the effective interbank lending rate systermn from 1 January 2022, Tne rate change
resulted 1IN o commercial impact te ine business.

Finance leases
Tre future minimam finance lease payments are as fellows

2023 2022
_ - £'000 £:000

Pa, ments e o T . o
BT bt ot pear 1,195 2428
At than one ves sr 3 ool lae e flee pears 6,594 5,899
| arer than five years 79,141 76461
Iomal arm s cayvmernts 86,930 84788
Los, anae ¢araes ) (50.457) {51.785)
Carrying amount of the liability 36,473 33003

The anance leases prmanily relate to & leased builoing aod healthcare equipment. There are no contingen:
rental, 1enewal or purchase option clawses Rents payvable mcrease by local inflaticn Finance leases are

secdred aganst the leased assete,

Tre Company had no finance leaves at 30 Juns 7073
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Decommissioning
provision Deferred tax Total
Group ) E'UOQ o _£'000 £'000

E B B S RITRET 41,023 37,828 78,851
A TS (SR T DUEDY I I B EA 319 {27.106) (26,787
Fare e bor grmen s b= oo preb 2l L2 nL e - 21,363 21,30

(3]

R T L O R I PRI R 4,612) - 14,61

o

EEE TR R NL RN Y U B Y LR - 7,358 /558
R TR RS 730 - /30
AN Al (19} - (19}

At 30 June 2023 37,441 39,443 76,884

The decomm saianng pross ang held bo Cove Snture chaganons o retten land onwhich there are cperational

velbid broanase andd cola tanms o ther o sl concton The araurts are ofb ¢

¥ected oo ne Lhilied forin

excess of YD vears

Vs O -

e Compary bad ro provmors at 28 June 2023

18 == [ S AR TR -

The Coonp ane ompary heo U fallovsng hiare Capital

Group 2023 2022
£'000 £'000

- . - X - R L SO AL ST pr N v o e

175,876 161,662

Allotted, ca!led-up and fully paid

T ERRR ezl Lt

Company 2023 2027
Allotted, called-up__a_r_lgi fully paid - £000 £'000

SR Ve b s meroimet = & b L e DT g s n S i P A B At 0 L N T HATRE e

S - S

175,876 161,662

s cadd for the shares 2 arg nse to e e e of

o Tourng ros oear b Do

SEC AT anaregate ne riral catus oF £

Prortibeshass goorarss b aprom sy om0y
TR e Vs Al Optet PIERe e T A0S0 T RS PHNS DO A gt t e at pah Al A el Ly e st L e !

trersfors TR Shaed Carla, Hr g sParE DI Lol Lr are teae 1 As i e, s s st 20 Culn DL e,
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i share capital ansing both betere and afler ino restructure are reported as movenrerts n e Sroupr share
capital

During the cear the Cormpary issued 142135008 12022 119866 754 ordimary shares ot L0 10 each for an
agqaregaie nemimal vawe of F1L204 000 12022 £112870000 CF the shares issaes dunng the year total
consioeration of £P57A1 12022 L2053 750060

243 2O 000 (2022 £151,764.0000 Dunng <he yoear the Group puncbaned mil (20
] } }

100 Orwas pad for the shares, gving nse (o a premiun of

22 il of s own o cnd nary,

shares of £l each with an aggregate rorming. value of £l 2022 £nll Total consideahion of Fril 12022 £l

2 Lrild

veas pad for the snares, grang nec o a prentivm of Foil (2

There 15 g <ihale class of crainary shares There are ng restrictons on the distnbutior: of didends ard the
J

tepayrrert of capital

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow hedge reserve 15 usen to record transactions aasng frem the Group s cash flow
hedging arrangements

Merger reserve
[he merger reserve anses from the difference between tnc far value of the shares 1ssues and the ook values
of the subsidianes acquaed.

197 - vt e
The maovermnent in ron controlling nterests was as (ollows

Group

Note 2023 2022
Group _ _ 7 _ E'000 £000

Ze (2,901) 3721

ATl 20

sale ot sobooaany mdertalongs ard acausine 27 (11,231) B

clraa conneiing noere:d

Totaocomprehens v 1 attribarte 1o 1,337 6.622)
rcrn cetrollieg interesis

AL D 2027 (12,795) (2.901}
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20

S5 a0 300 Trs 203 thore Lere g Sontingons es GOress tne S s Daompary

21
Catrpnqearecunts of inanoisl assets and hatalnes

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £'000

C e meweme s w4 4 o e

Group
Carrying amount of financial assets
[ SE R TR T AN T ST R R Ty TV SRR RATETE S It 508,042 423,150 509 4,235

L LTS N R | B B Co T DUR LRI | SR BT o T Tt Ry B SN R 105,691 54,409 - -

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

s g el oy 1,265,555 1,126,163 1 76

Mows 26 detale the s penad adpnstrments
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Derivative financial instruments
The Group's hinancial risk management seeks to s e expoiure to markat risk, credit ask, lgudity and
cash flow risk, ana energy market ngk

a) Market risk

Energy market risk

The onergy sector s expenenting sigrifcant turbuence and ther< s a risk that *orecast levels ol income are
not ach eved due 1o changes mwhoesale energy phices, ofl take contracts o governmert sukbsidies Changes
m Government palicy of regulaicr ntervenhion rmay resalt in redaced income streames within the group duc
Lo additenal levies

Currency risk

The Group preserts its corsclidated nnancial staterments i sterbng and corducts buginess in g nuimber of
other currencies, principally Furo and Austalan dollar Conseauently, the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange nsk due to exchange rate movemerts, which affect the Growp's ansactional expenses and the
transiatior of earn ng and net assets of its non-sterling operations

Transactional exposures

Transazticnal exposures anse from adrmin stralive znd other expense in curercies ather than the Group s
presentational currency (Sterling) The Group enters i Lo forwsrd forgign oxchange contracts and [creign
cxchange swaps to milgate the exchange 1ate nsk for certain forcign currercy payables ard receipts The
forward cunercy contracts and swaps are measured at fanr vatue, which s determined using valuat:on
techricues tnat utilise observable mputs The key inpats wsed i valang the dervatves are the forward
exchange rates for GBP ALUD and GBP CUR. On 30 June 2023 the fa r value of the foreign currency contracts
weas an assel of Fili2022 £nil ) ard a latality of Lol 12022 Fnili

Translational exposures

Balance sheet trarsiational exposures anse an ¢ansclidancn on the reuanslat-on of the balance sheet of nan-
sterung cperations e sterling, the Group's presentational currcrcy  The level of cxposure 15 revievved |y
rmanagement ang the potentia, foreign exchange movement is within an acceptable wevel of nsk and therefore,
typically, the Group's pobicy 10 not o actively nedge these exposures

Interest rate risk

The Group has expostre o fluctuatons ronterest rates on s borrowings Where the Group enters into
Dorrowing arrangaments with floating rale interest, a swap arrangement s entercd inlc to fix g portion of the
Interest in order 1o eitigate agamst an increase in nterest rates The poruon of interest to be fixed 15 assessed
on a case by case basie Management can elect whether to hedge account for these arranqememts Oran
ingividual sransacion bas s and have electod to apply hedge accountng for mterest rate swaps The swaps are
based on a prircipal amount of the lean faclity and mature or the gsame date On 50 June 2023 the
culstanding interest rale swaps have a matunty i excess of five vears and the fat valuc is inan asyet position
of FI05 691 000 (2 habshty of £54,40% 000)

Price risk

The: Group s a short to mcdium-ternm lender to the residenust property market 1o the exlent thal thars s
deterioration in the lovet of aouse prices that affects the properties that the Group's wwans are securod against,
there s a nsk tnat the Group may not recoup its full cxposure: THis ¢ m tgated by the short werm rature of the

Isans and the conservative level of lean to value that the Groug s prepared to lend at
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b} Credit risk

Clnstonies Zre il sk s iy sorobare oplace to ansre st

CLF CUSIC e s N ¢ oA sorgeoendg basi
c} Liquidity risk

Lizuidie, sk are mznaged Lo 2nsuerg hat Somnoert 2350 s a3 able w furd conur arg aod Tutlore Dperaiioss
Liguiddity 1ok anses on nank wars 10 place aooss the rcap ard s managed throagh careful monnot ng of

cwenants and senaible levels of debt Bondearg s on g ong-te bans whereas Gal rsudnng 19 el end

throaaghout the Jear 33 w0. Gs aferesl and redaoripho nt o onr chor-tomn lean baook Cask fowe n1g<08

It

maraged theough Sngorg Casa Lo furec SN 1o ensure rcapts g sufficient Lo et hakilities 35 they, 12l

cue
22 T B Lo e
AT A0 year end tre Greup nad Catial commuinieis at oo s

2023 2000
Group £000 £000

Coertraced  pL T e e e e Il sty s 118,859 347254
I er ) S [ R 0 L B b e e 197,320 175600

Al 20 cume tnc Grous Bao Welal futurs meeenium 1ca

Caytnenis uader nen cancelable cperaung leasos

EERteNN

2023 ol

Land and Other Land and Other
buildings Laldings

£'000 £000 £000

£'000

10,350 781 8,707 661
STt T = 34,358 709 31627 726

98,367 - 35664 -
143,075 1,490 125998 1387

The Group aad re otron of-nalar oo theet arrangemenis 20 22
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3 B P P S P R A
Cn 24 Oorener 2023, Tern Trading Develepment Limited CFTOLY a subsicdiary of the Groap sticcessfully sold
Dulaces FoaCo Pty Lta and ts sursizianes to Octopus Austraba Master Trust A profit of £22m was made on
the sale

I October 2023 the Groug rased E217m from existing shareholders through an offer te sunsenbe for further

shares

24 - o0 P e el

Under FRS 102 25 1A disclosures need not be gven of transaciions enlered inte between vwo o more
rmembers of & Crous, proviaed that any subsidary whick 1s a party 1o e transachion s wholly avened By cuch
3 member

Luring tne year, fees of 90490000 12027, 77544, 0000were charged to the Group by Odopus Investments
Limited, & relatec party due toits ssanificart nfluence over tne entily. QCopus Invesuments imited veas
echarged legal and professicnal fecs totaling F75000 (2022 £10355) by the Croup At the yoar end, an
amourt of ENLI2022 L5 500) was outstanding wruch s mcuded in trade creditors

The Group s crtitlea to a proht share as a ~ecult of ite invesiment in Tenao Li P a related party dug 10 key
management parsonnel in common In 2023 a shae of profit ecual to £955 000 12022 L5 2450000 has been
recogrised by the Group At the year ond, the Group has an interest in the merber's capita, of £13,7/42.000
(2022 L35452.000) and accrued incore dus of £2.812 000 (2027 £5,276.000

Thie Group engages in lending act wties which nclude balanceos provided (o related parties Regarding entiiies
vt by managenent porsennet in commer, loans of £65,070.0001 (2022 £64450 0001, accrued mcone of
£28 896,000 12022 £1878%000) and deferred ncome of ML (2022 LNl were cutstandimg

Duning the year interest mrome of £9102,000 2022 £7160,0000 and fees f £214.000 1202

al vear erd
z f::",-)/l‘EJ'OO}

were recogrised 1 relalion to these wans

Ao at A0 June 2023 ENIL 2022 ENIL was owed to the Company By Bracken Trading Lemited, 3 related party
Dy key maragement personnel in comrron

Citvier than the Lransact ons disclosed above, the Company s other refated carty fransactions wore wwith its
whotly owned subsidiary members of the Group

Toimaty, sned ot i ean

25 "1t

Imthe oprien of the directors, there is no ultimate conaoling party of parent company
=k 3 ¥
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26

a) Derivative adjustment

of cror L ears Sueod b g T alnert O e

Mo hgee condacted e s

oo dervative recagnton Ve hoave dontified an erorelating i

S 1oss s >

AMCrtsation

Sxerose nraeriaker o 20

freatenent Unorire s, 1owgs Laciugted e andrtisal
S ash e

Pic of thie casl oy

aof tho ass aas

fair value of the Lohedges and e anartestion

Liedyge This aled bas o oonsesuencs

craclatre mpacs wwas s o 15 Snnreduct crnon histoncal rterssl cost, gana ar

other comprebensye nTome A samrrary o the impalt of the corect on s

frie 3ssCdiated tax adjuetnm =

Year ended

30 June 2021

(as stated)

Group £000
14.979
6,469

IR T A (38,145}
11326.0459)

Tast v Mo
Chetbodal Tl e
[ forred Tax

etopad oo 1

The logs

e o G e e T apammt Ll st Ll e s i Tr G e AR s

all finar<ial yvears from Z00°

#038 Lhe resglt of

alzaudy

e Corectly beenccogniten tvice

L

Accumulated
adjustments

£000
4,505
1,209
1.575
(5.849)

ther Cormprohiens & 1 eonie 0 reianen

relatrg o tie

I renanc

|

suna adace noelaton o the aucouting

reflected e the wpaated

over ihe

Grothe cale ulahicon of hedge neffeciveres; Tnc
Cala ard cpposite reducnc

sioviceda below which inclides

Year ended
30 June 2021
{restated)

£000

A A N NI R s A AT 4k A 6N WL, ¢

19484
1678
136,570}
{141,898)

oAt T b o sl a2 bl 6,603 11.439) 5164

Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2022 adjustments 30 June 2022

(as stated) (restated)

Gr_c_)_!.lp ) o o £'000 7 £'000 ) 7 AE'OOO
s e 163.005)

(PR T L SRR T 32192
Tgne L 54410
B P Tan e oh Valal {8,161
I BT T IR B TR I PR 141,597
o4 Lar 2770

11088
[8,285]
716

15023

NN
0o

o

o

=
e
e
[ay]
(o)

51.917)
23907
55,126
111,174
137,828]

(9,750

b
[l
=)
N

17868
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271 10— i Sl

a) Millwood Designed Homes acquisition

On 25 Janues y 2023 the Group acaudired MO-11Group! Linnted snd 1ts supsidianes through tne purs hase of
1005 of the share capital for corsiaeraton of £24 162,000

The folowing tatles summanse the consideration paid by the Groun the fair value of the gscets acquired, and

the labilirmes assumed at the acauisition date

Consideration N ‘ ' ] o o £'000
7;}.‘”*,,_‘4. i B A 80 ARSI £+ 4 & W | 1 OB 1 e Adahr s it o e s e he il e e e m._..ﬁ..&z 1_4“21
[arss tly gty Erdante costs 720
Dererncd corsioo raian 2,000
:i'otal conside_ra;;:;_ - - 7””7772.;:;6”1:

Details ot the far value of the net assets scquired and geodwill ansing are as follows

Book value Adjustments Fair value

£000 £000 £000

el .1‘,\3&;:“ - . - o 469 T h 469
ritanigit e Aassels 331 - 331
ek 51,651 (797 30,854
“race arag olae recciables 1,363 ~ 1.363
Cashiann ik sl ats 6771 - 6,771
Trade g Sther oot {3,332 - (3.332)
ISETIE (18 860) - (18.860)
Net assets acquired o 18,393 (797) 17,596
T e o o 6,565
Total consideration o - 24,161

Coodwill resulting from the business combinaton was £6.565.000 and has an estirmated uscful life of 10
veats, reflecting the lifcspan of the assets acguired

The consobdated staterrent of comprenensye income for the vear includes £12 604 000 revenne and a loss

before tax o £A4G9.000 in respect of this acqussition.
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28 1 3 - o

1T

Y

Foport Inmeqsunng our perrormiarce, ire Ananddl measires thal vee e mclads theso st hiaee poer

Gered frarn Dor reported resdits 1 Srder G Climenate tactcrs th2t distort poan o

Fre corsidored o CAAR fimancial preasues

Net debt
W proada et ackt oacduor 10 Cask and orets cett as oozl 2f etess no o overal Cash nostion angr
Soeeannpiied s iollons
2023 2022
£000 EO0G

' 1.033.184 1,044 218
St lGar 7 ) ] 7 [ 125,000 5,364

2ol

Gross dept 1,158,184 1,049,582
":: Sk Al T A o - N il 156,219) 1256,415)
Net debt

1,001,265 793,167
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EBITDA
Famings before nterest, tex, geprecialion ans amortisstion CERIT2AT s calculated By sojusting proft after I

Lax for mterect, tax, deprcdiation and amaoris

ation, o adcition toonceime and experses that do rotrelaie w i
the day 1o day oparations ot the Croup Ve provide LB TDA mraddition to profit aftarn tas as talows us ta

azsess o porformance withool the effects of financoy and capdal cxparditures i
The foilowirg table detals the adiusireents made to the reporred results

lrestated)
2023 2022

Note £'000 £:000

e e L Y e A

£ e R LA S A LTI M L ARG C S el Sk T e e e A S AN i A 1) et oAb b e s

Profit/(loss) for the financial year (131.559) 38,020

4]

43,055 37849
Iepaneesrs of nlanainte t . 936 7913
[eoreciate o tannble gssets - 103,754 101,802
: +} 21670

Chavalle and snevilar e nor e s 49,265 25,270
Froeptionl hen, 12674 1.705
Ta - {(17.208) 17.868
Lree

[aeceee hom oinct faed aset e tments {855} {5.249)
Sosan G subs e, 1.045 {29,532)

Aonrrigatica OF ntandible s el

Pronlcr chs

[Pt v e ishile Gt Ll ine amc S (713) {130)

EBITDA 81,963 194,917

MNote 26 details the oricr pedod adjustments
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Detals ofthe cnladiar, anaertanas dre ay 1ollowy

St er . oo B Le e e e 1

Lo

Sopt e ool S L

B, I i
Aol el Los
R ETLER N R

Bt o Treyy o

P b eed”

Pooala v Loy’

SRR RO e B T
Tt Lot
Boct s e toa b
blae, ™ A1
e -

b P T
| S
s [ L

= ! i

L:r. i -
R I
I I
- fas

1l

e Mol e e d”

Country of
incorporation
RUEISE (Rt taty

RN TR LN o taTan

et Sinigdon

caEl K rgdom

_rtec Kergebm
Ured Singadern

Foog ke e
Lreed Kinagom

rance

e g dem
v ocedd Kinesasm
Fore d Kangda-
IR e F
SUel mGanm
Urired dinzaom

el Firgdom

Ll K rgdam

RS M

Jrste pimgane

Class of

. shares

Ordinary
Chrdnary
Orodimary
Cedinary

Ordinary
Ordimary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
2rdinary
Ordinary
Ordmary
Cordingry
Circhinary
Ordinary
Crdmary
Crdir-ary

Crdinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
1002
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
W00%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal

IT Security pr-cwdf‘—;r
Howding cormpary
brnergy generation
Energy qeneralion
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Friergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy gencration
Energy generaton
Energy ganeration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaton
Raolding company
Haolding compary
Energy generation
Energy generation
bolding company
Energy generabhon
Erergy generation
Energy generatinn
Cnergy generaton

Encrgy generation
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Name .
SRR e laconmiee |

R R Daresne Dan

CFRE Hat L e

Cadoesr Roesotee Fovsr med”
Ui Broergy e

ok et

S 1 mutar Taom L™
Coakor Leergye Lirrere ™

Coalls ey it

Cedat Earrgy ane Infestructore Lineeed

CREFPF dn Labo b Tlalre fuses S Gl

OFPE oo g hacise sl

O RN

Crpelsoa Mesnoey Freray et
Topsbor sclar Frreeeo cdeas Lt
ChtEnne Seba beeo Uneleos

Clpaver Breryy Linm teed
Loarrbanm LT

U atatne e solar 5= 1 Limered]
CLE Dievelopimer s | omited
TLE Draragas Diomted”

L5 Seraices . nited’

CL70 1950 L

CL7F 1249 himeed™

CLOF Haldeigs tomited”

CLUF Fraects Lol

CLTF breopctz 20 rvatedd”

[N O S E R B AT T

C_PE RGO T hiea
[ I O 4O O 1ol OO
FO I A T M| VNS
TR RCC EAhimeien”

oMU RO AL e

B o ¢ L T T L

Country of
incorporation

P e

Feanco

France

Lred 4 ~ganm

Lrvred sirgasm

Ire ard

Urited =ingdom

Uriated Kargdam

Urited < rgdem

Urated & rgdam

France

Frarce

Franre

Lrized Krgdom

Lritea Kagaom

Lried Hingaom

Urited Hingaom

Unired Kingaom

LInired <ingdom

United <Ongoom

ed ringgom
Unsed Kiqgdom

Jr

wed Kingdom

Jnted Kingdom

ned Hingaom

ned ingdom

Jn.ted Hingdom

Joeed ingdom

Unred Kimadom

Jared Hiacdom

reree #ingdom

Jerec Kingdom

Jares Kingdom

Class of Principal

shares ..Holing activity ...
Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Holding company

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Crdinary 100% Holding company

Ordinary 100% [nergy generation

Ordinary 100% Cnergy generation

Ordinary 100% Holding company

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Holding company

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Lrdinary 100% Dottianl compary
Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Dotmant company
Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Ordinary 100% D.ormam company
Ordinary 100% Holding company

Ordmnary 100% Holding company

Ordinary 100% Holding company

Ordinary 100% Holding company

Ordinary 100% Holding company

Ordinary 100% Cnergy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Name
R N A
SN = L
~t bl .
AR I SIS I L NELIS N
T ek b by I
L T R Iy
Coa o berti e e
Tl st
Taa, e Lo
VAL R vofeahy
RORTE TR R Yoty -
DN M Y e e
coe e e
e Gt Lo
I NIRRT
renlew s oore e
ol 1t st e
[ it ] YRR
Tttt o s
Chapsr B el
Tl Loy by oo = 70
vl s b as B ety
KIS T
[N TR [
(IR A e
- 0
s s '
7 Tty Al

.

v

o rioheEnd
e

el

o

e

[} bl

Teokrottn

Country of

incorporation

Coles peegd m
g bor g e
coatcrregdie
BN EARTS Fh

SRR TG

[ tes ncdes

B el NI MR

et e g

Ltz Kingder

P tesy Hundee v

Lried Kingdomr

e Kinady e

Piriled karigd 5

et kgl

Lirited Kinodo

creed Krge e

e Knadom

LT K e

LT e adam

s kneaaonn

Al ana

AETERI

A3ty a

Auustea g

Class of

shares

e -

Ordinary
Orchinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Orchinary

Ordmary

Ordinary
Cwdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crrdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
COrdinary
Orchinary
Ordmary
Ordirary
Crdmary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
rdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

<

Principal

Holding activity
100%

Cnergy geﬂem‘t«ox‘\
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation

Development of
building projects

Caonstruction of
domestic bultdings

Development of
buildirg projects

Lhergy generation
LCnergy generation

Fibre network
producton

Energy generation
tnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Eneray aeneration
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generaton
Holding company
Energy generatuon
Ene-gy generation
Energy generatior
fnergy generation

Energy generation
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Name @ o .
[le-c s rranve 4 S|

Clece i lance L nar

Mlecel brence w55 a0

Mecsol braare 21 S gl
Clec=ctbrance "Sanl

Flocsci Hanit Yoar w300
Flosbaces, 2 Trarce 5407

Froe bacioe 20 nufed

Lbess Laere, 2 5rancs SAS

Llow Loy Holdras - Lirmited™
Cles Brnerory Holargs 2 Limited
Eoom Baeare Holzirgs Lieten”™

Fiog Ronewable Bacigy Dirn teas

FEoa lceelopmern Dirance b rited”
CocaHclhirge Dimred™

Fooasdernes (5 ertia L teg

VA ccanes (ormer s 2 Linn e

Lopa —oamies arange Road: L bed™

S cnres detest hinnen”

g G es (Sonshorm) Lirmited”

Favie Heres iSnrkatont Jimmited”

Elisia Mo oo Limred ™

Clivia Mo et

Elvcig e orbord o mete o7

Fliaa s suthe it

Firce soathen itz

Country of Class of
~ _incqrpuratign ) shares o
branue Ordmary
Feance Orchinary
France Ordinary
[rance Ordmary
franoe Crdinary
fran-e Crdinary
Feance Ordinary

Lrated Kingaom Ord'\nary
France Ordinary
Lrited largaom Ordmary
Lriten Kirgoeom Ordinary
Lried frgoorn Oredinary

Uratea Kirgdom Ordinary
Lrted Krgdem  Ordinary

‘Crdinary,
Urited Kingdarm Deferred,
Preference”

Untea K aadom Ordinary

Jnee maderm Ordinary

Uatec Kimadam  Ordinary

United Kngdorm Ordinary

United ¥ingdors Ordinary

United <imgdo— Ordinary

Unted <ngdor Ordinary

Uneed <ngde~ Ordinary

Unted ngde~ Ordinary

Unsea <made~  Ordinary

IInred urgda- Ordmary

Holding
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activity

B A T

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holdmg company
Holding company
Holding comparty
Hotding company
Holding company
Holding company

Construction of
domestic buldings

Firancial services
holding companies

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic bulldings

Development of
bulding projects

Construction of
domestic buldings

Construction of
domeshc butldings

Development of
buldding projects

Develooment of
bulding projects

Construction of

domestic buildings
Buying and selling
of own real estate

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic builldings
Buying and selting
of own real estate
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L ame

(NSRRI RTATENIG
L M R TF R

Frbke oot b =

IRRA NIt R R L6

vural e snege langs Lo
crealoeln by Dol

Felteanl Froerg, Ly o™

B T a I LRI G T Ty R IR R TS I
SR ST P LS T B R AL St

[orebrmry, b 47

Trert bz, Ao e b dregs Lo
P
Peom Tk _le s

P mlomo b ey

Fors bearosanl Froere o] oo
-t Cottr Ty [ dd

[ b Soogrozoa bt
B by ar = LIRS
- i .T-J”

- S le < B
I A DL Lt

cp e T I
Lo

= = =

Country of
incorporation

Lhred kingzeg s

Paliig el SIS

Crresh rodom
Coten Eegaoe
LUned anggom
L e D K
_e e Kooagpdem

U iad kinnass

unoak

ciF3 R adem
Linten Kinggorm
Hres | Ingon
Ly d Karadam,
Juted K gdomn
e mimgdg e
Lrited King disve

Lt b e

b K rgdern

Antec Kingdom

e Hinogoey

Ll Krgdomn

e Kemgaonn

s Ko e

Loriten snadoer

FRR s TR

Lrzasimgs e

Class of

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crennary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Urdinary
Ordmary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary

Crdmary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Orodmary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
rdnary
Ordinary
Crchinary
Orthnary

Ordinary

Holding

100%

100%

100%
100%
106%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1007%

100%

Q5%

100%

100%

100%

100%
200%
100%

100%

Principal
activity
Cnergy generation

Energy project
developrnent and
managemant
services

Energy generatbor
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Fnergy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holdng company
Holding company
Holding comparty

Howding company
Holding company

Holding company
Holding cornpany
Halding company
Helding cormpany
Energy generation
Frergy generation
Energy generat.on
Holding cornpany
Helding compary
Howding company
Helding cormpany
Supply of fertibser

Frergy gencration
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Country of Class of Principal
et eiwe wimeeneo.. . Jmorporstion  shares ~ Holding MWty s

s s Lle Lrteaminadeess Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
adcial Thnergy Crontedd Lreed kinador Ordinary 100% Dormant company
altearel T oo g Lrezd kngdos Ordinary 100% Efiz)rgullilt&ork
L,‘l{;“'\‘l:?(' NIRRT || Crnted s ety Urned Mo Ordinary 100% Fipre network
cgaArst oo production
Laotchamber dand Eagrge D mvten - Unned <ingderm  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cranae o sanm e Urited nadern Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Coasdbndge spo7ooo- Fotane Ordinary 100% Energy generation
srarbs e Hoer Ling e Uried Kingderm  Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Sy | IRIDLE MLl _td Unied Kingdam Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ayt el (Natewoad Hodings | mieod Unied kingdom  Ordinary 100% Holding company
Savtraaer Hatewooat o Unied Kingdom  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
yrraerer ki el mas s i ed” Unied kingsdom — Ordinary 100% Helding company
S o iCaklaagsr 117 United Kingdum Ordinary 100% Energy generation
el =oar 2 Limees” Uneed Kingdorm Ordmary 100% Haolding company
Heolin = corited” United Kingdom  Ordinary 1060% Holding company
Hiobwer Knapo Fam hinged” urned Kingder Ovdmary 100% Encrgy genecration
Fhe Eved Fam Lirpees ™ Lreed Kirgaser Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Healiare o mm ted Lrited Kirgaon Ordinary 100% Encrgy generation
HILI Reemros <o L toe ™ wried Kigaer QOrdinary 100% Energy generalion
Plars vsby 1 mited™ criealngacm  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
M aghant Powvect Lireited” wried Kngao™  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
eIl St Lmited ™ Jritea Kingaom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Jorresen Read Eaergy Limeed” Jritea Krgaom  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
doramse S T ddhinas _nnted” writec Krgea~  Ordinary 100% Holamg company
Jiaregzn e T Lt Jened Kmadon Ordinary 100% FF]Leruréctltc\;\;orR
Bl Tewes anes” Ueiteg Mingdo Ordinary 100% Frnergy generation
Lirigan Pooer wmte A7 Jetea Kmadee Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Lenviatn wolst Linied drates Kinade - Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
Littes T Scdar Zrnited™ Jdrteg Kingdem Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Litteror =ola barmn b ted ™ deves Mingder Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Fibre network

LU e at o | dritee Gngdes - Crdinary 100% production
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Name
ok B e Lot
FSTING L S YRR R P

Latiminw o o ar nwrale v

P2 soamer s beeadoe

AP AT FAEE AP S URENTRrNte
B R P
g e Fioweams e

[ TR PR IR TS
LA o L e
Pheart oes Farrrn Letedf
Fazloe st T e’
AT E R I T TR ST

e o U a g Dorreten”

A b T

et Foveeeal 00 T Tl
elor fone ot bas o [ e I
Phette et Lyt IR
L LRI T NI TR P
S TIC I AR S SIS A R AT
I B S TS e R T N
I L R TR
B R N P L=
T S T A TN S e I AN AR
I L
L
[ IR cy RS

N

Country of

incorporation

Cren Koo
Vnred ke gase,
S0 e Qoo
Limed g s
B R T A

Lirgld anndom

Laben K
Coiter Kirgdom
Hnsed Kegdor
i R gidoe
Lt Simvgasem
Sl ki

Cmibea Rinadom

Joten Kirsger ey

ritgd Kingdam
e borodom
_noen Ky gdam

Hruted Ko

WG ey

Hntes Kiradom

Crran Krgdom

ey Kingde

Leoroainadom
dnrer Froadem

LM oadim

whod Koo,

Class of
shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
(ndinary
Crrdinary
Oidinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crainary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordmnary
Crdinary
Ordirary
Ordinary

Orahinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Cradinary
Crdinary
Jrdinary
Ordinary
Ordirary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinsry

(ndinary,

leding

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal
activity

Energy generation
Cnorgy generaton
Cnergy generanon

Fibre netywark
production

Energy generanon
Energy goeneraton
Erergy generation
Energy aencration
Halding company
Cnergy generabion
fnergy generation
Holding company
Holding cormpany

Asset leasing
Cormpany

Helding company
Holding company
Holding ceompany
Energy generation

Construction of
domestic buldings

Construction of
domestic burdings

Construction of
dornestc buildings

Construchon of
domestic puldmgs

Halding company
Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Energy generat on
Energy generanon
Energy generatian
Energy generatior
Energy genersuorn

Energy ganerat.on
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Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares Holding activity
ety Fare 4z Lot Tare Diron oo™ wretes Kagdom - Oirdinary 100% Energy generation
Forsttree b Dot g el LrazaKoceom  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Moo Loy Lirrivsd tined Kresm Ordinary 100% Halding compary
Ciprore Dovveer Limopteey un e kngdem  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cdedhale et oo sere Holdings Lieeite I ted kg Ordinary 100% Holdirg company
t,c;',lu_s {u—::"imzj ot Lniterd e Unsec kg Ordinary 100% Prqwspn of
sete bimeie s pat s liesnedstion - healthcare services
Cactus Fadirng Técst Jnced ipe e ously e Hathelo ) Provision of
o oo Ui K folad f % i
Hosntar ot — caf e squidat 0 - Wl ' " Crdinary 160 healthcare services
Caatlus Tenlia Limwees fr oot Ui s fea s .
l_’:””fl[[ L\‘lnw I bl e e Uned kirgaer  Ordinary 100% Holding company
Vot Veedae bl Seaan Hloddings Dierledd Unedirgee Ordinary 100% Holding company
e fachill Sear Linited” Uned Kirgoerr Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Faltro s Bacton omite” Unod Krgase  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Pare aa Hedrge omitend” Un'ed wrgeo~  Ordinary 100% Holding company
Tarciaa Lrrted ™ Uned Wingas~  Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
‘ Fibre netwaork
Fark oadband Leeted” Unea Kingaer - Ordinary 100% fore netie
production
Pegninal Solae 2 Uned Kinggem Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Porekifone o oresner Sirfild B ot L e Urited kimgaz~ Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fece Farm i tee™ United <rgaes Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Feortbies Soar hined” Uned Kirgdne Oradinary 100% Holding company
Fome Tane sciar Lud” Uated Kirguuer Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Gt Bark konyg Leergy conead” United kirggom Ordinary 100% Energy generation
- . . are servic
Fangesod Care D inated” Unted nirgoom Grdinary 100% “ e _for ;
- retirement village
. . . ‘ : Retrement village
Fangeord Chertey Dimited United Kirgaz= Ordinary 100% I rege
’ ’ development
Retirement village
loanaeiond ©nereester Lined Hted Grgace Ordhinary 100% etirement wvillag
K development
S TSN —).’ I e (e sy 5oy ‘-"-) IS R S 1
Raneesonet Do e L] [peceacely Rangetond Urted rgdam Ordinary 100% Care services for a
gt et retirement village
_ irement vill
Fangetad Zast tansicaa Dinetes” Jrted wrgdom Ordnary 100% Retirement village
: development
Fanuefaa Aaldimees Torteo™ Jreted <rgdorn - Ordmary 100% Holding company
‘ . . Retirerment village
Fanae’cad - wernns Lirmitesd Jried wngdom - Ordinary 100% 9
: : ’ development
. ) Retirernent village
I-"J\T‘;F\"’:’wl"j EE et draed Sinadem Qfd'”ary 100% e

development
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U e e

St e ety

vt L s
S Hlly e e el
< N A P [ AT

It rote Loty

Shetterner Soce L gbile oo Duet et
e b Tt Proie o=
Syt e b D el

R DT R R

Country of

incorporation

oy e <

Ui 4 sma o

s d RnzanTn

it Koo

e d o

“rne

<rerEg Krgdom

e d rngieees

Liten Rirgaees

LIRS kinadom

Hn-ec Fingdern

i sen King oo

Laten Krgdam

Lin g Kimgdem

Lr ez Angoees

Loiteg Kradam

Sncez Kemgdem

Sman kg

Class of

shares

Ordwary
ordinary
Crrehnary
Crdinaty
Ord nary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Qredingry
Ordinary

Cirdinary
Crdinary
Crdimary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Crchnatry

Crdinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Crcdinary
Ordmnary
Cirdinary
Ordinary
Crdimary
Ordinary
COrdinary
Crdinary
Crdimiary
Crdinary
Ordinzsy
Crdenary

Crainary

Holdipg

1007

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
130%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

Principal
activity

Haoldmao company

Retirerrient village
development

Dhergy gencrat on
Erergy generation
Frergy generatior
Energy generaton

Construction of
domestic buuldings

Frergy generabion

Fibre network
moducuen

Holding company
Energy generation
Encrgy genaration
Energy generation
Frnergy generation

Supply of Diomass
fuel

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Enargy generation
Energy generat:on
Energy gencration
Encrgy generation
Lnergy generat on

Encrgy generatior
Frergy genergnion

Fnergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat on
Dormrmant comeany

Haolding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023

Country of Class of Principal

N e e e e JSaomton | SRATES e I e o
R RIS e T RO A ) Uried <o gdurn Ordinary 100% Energy generalion
Shrley Crapteon b avant - LR Lrrted frgdum NA 50% Oormant LLP

TN ey i L Urred - gdom  NA 50% Oormant LLP
Sesh B o Contras g Coilen” Urrzd <ngdoem Ordinary 100% Elrlgjuzeut(:\frk
Swsol Fhre Creiled” bred < gdom - Ordinary 100% Holding company
sacuh Thre Netveorss Fimien” Ureed sogder Ordinary 100% Egsulfz\:rk
Cvak T Rre e e Lreed <mgdom Ordinary 100% ;igdeul?;\frk

R R L S T R E=Te Lrired <rgdor Ordinary 100% ;irtggulif;mk
TOw Senar 102 Lirnited” Lnted <ingdorn Ordinary 100% Energy generation
T Seear 10 Timih g Leced <agior Drdingry 100% Erergy generation
[eat, Sean 08 L mfen” Lnced dmgdors Ordinary 100% Energy generation
130 o S Lirited Unted trgdorm Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ihe Fera Doer Compar, D Lated 4ngdo~  Ordinary 100% Holding company
The Holles Seoar bar= Lirrted”™ Umted <ingdor Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Tt oreshy bstate ibiuon,: Lioited” Unted Mngdern Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Trlmanare Beswen ot o Jnszd agdzm Ordinary 100% Energy generation
oedln s onergy crrnbead™ Jrited ingaem - QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
e reeen Faren Lerited” Jnred Kingoom - Qrdmary 100% Energy generation
Suees solar Lirnted” Urited Kimgnem Qrdinary i00% Energy generation
CESE 15 Seus Lirmeed” Unted kinanem Ordinary 100% Energy generation
drted Mines Eregy hieiced Urted Kingdem  Ordinary 100% Energy generation
wins L Hrited kinguem Ordinary 100% Eggur;etilgjork
Victorag Selye e’ Urited ingosm — Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Wingrs Frcrgy Liemited Uritea Kingdom — Ordinary 100% Holding company
WA Lot Do ted” Uries Kingdom  Ordinary a0 ;gﬁﬁ&om
witre Linted” Urites kingdem  Ordinary 100% ;\%r;:urlet‘it(\;«;ork
volalance 1 ar | France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
soltatrance 15 Sarl Franze Ordinary 100% Energy generation
waliafrance S ar France Crdinary 100% Energy generation

deltaftance satrl Frare Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Country of Class of

Namer 7 . incarporation shares ]
et o tes Sesregden o Grdinary
TP FY) [EIRCE RO T Ordnary
R N L RN Frten wnguses Oidinary
e T S RN TR PRIS B S AL W S I r el berog s Cirdinary
St ot oo ey Sameetoadem Crdinary
ot bl by prined) Leite dRngae Ordinary
[ e | N EA | Jires Kraden Crdinary
ek bare T s’ Urmed Kinseorn Ordinary
o al e e e Lpite A _aren Ergdem (_)rdimary
s oy Urited <maaem Ordinary
Cictaeriea Poecy, el Lurest b g Ordinary
Vebiart st bt Jnceskicgdem Ordinary
Sohag e amn ol Lried Kinodar: Ordinary
U TN A (I I TR R rec K adem Ordinary
el = e dnags aned Lir ted Mg oo Ordmary
SNEIINONS ERTE RUTRC N eakegdon Grdinary
[ B L R P R 1 N Urile d “ingaom Ord;mary
e beatornd Domrtedd’ e Krgdee Ordmary
Ll oo =olne as el o dnceskeaasm Ordinary
Sro e sanest o beoted trteg ¥rgder Ordingry
ST Tk VA L e Jntezkingdom Ordinary
LEE DA e Lo Letedlrcan- Ordinary
szl e e et L Seezkiegdent Orginary

Holding

90%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1a0%

100%

Principal
activity

Holding company

Fibre retwork
production

Retivement village
cperator

Service charge
adromistrator

Energy generation
Halding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generalion
tnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy genciation
Holding compary
Frnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding camparny
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Cnergy generation

incorporated/Acquired after year end

can Lt o

QS/L2(2023
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Dlssolved ors the year and up untll:‘.lgnlng S , N Date

DY Clchwali ey Reccnery Lired T T 0022
Corerel Lt 15/08/2022
Curangton 2ot Holdeo Fry Limiteo 08/07/2022
& ngton = ot Sola Farn By Lirnied 08/07/2022
Lasangton ot Sunhaldrs Py Lirated 08/07/2022
Culasca - Holdoo PTY wd 2471012023
Culacca Energy Froosot oicon Co -ty Lta 24/10/2023
Dulacca E-eroy Proect C o Py Lid 24/10/2023
Culzeca Ervrgy Fioscl TintZe FIv L 24/10/2023

The registered office of all compan es listett above 19 at &th Flac, 25 Holbam, Tondon, England,
except for those ot aut below

1w Grzybowska 2/29. 00 151 Warsaw, Poland

2. Pisent Masons LLE Capital Square B8 Mormson Street, Edinburgh, Scotland, EHS 8B
3. 1west Regent Street, Glasgows, G2 1AP

4. 22 nue Alphonse de Newsille 75017 Pans, France

5. 6th MNoow, 2 Grand Canal Souare, Dublin 2, D02 A342 reland

CTIM 2HT

6. The Carnage House, Station Works, Station Road Clasedden, Warwickshire, United Kingdom, CVEL BPE

7. Zene nodustoelle Je Courtine 105 Rue Du Mowelet 84000 &egnor, Srante

8. 13 Sahshury Flace London. Fhgland, WiH 10

S The Corooration Trust Company. Corporaten Trust Corter, 1209 Orange Strest, Wilrington 194801,

United States

10, 4th Moor Salsire Court, 20 Castle Tenrace, Edinbuigh, Scetland, Bl 2E

N Apollo House Mercury Park Wycomibe Lane, Wockbun Green, High Wycombe, England, HIP10 OHH

12, Level 33, 101 Conling Street, Melbourme. Victona, 3000, Austraba
15, Beaufost Cotrt, g barm Lare, Kings _angley, Herttcrdshire, \WDH4 8LR
14. 7-8 Stratford Place. London, England, WiC TAY

15. Broadwalk 1ouse, & Appoeld Streel, London, Urnsted Kingdaom, EC2A ZAG

The directans beleve that te canying velue of the mvesiments 15 suppenog oy the randerang net

asscts




5} APPENDIX — SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Forn Tradmo Lended = ar unisted compar, Zeers et oy Board of Dreectaors agees a proe at whohon

il og calig I ssue ne shares The share phce 1S Lmansies

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Pedcnvance s calc alated basea ontlhe sale oace for forms shaves at 2 onne eac i year 1ae share prge ¢

riat sablect t audit by Cringt o Young | U
Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

P N

Jume 20zZ2 G5 3.10%

Jane 2O21-27 9.91%

Jure 2020-21 4.87%
June Zi19-20 0.33%

s 207810 6.23%

June 2401

1.05%
bane 200617 5.54%
Sune 2010415 3.83%

oo 20041 3.98%

Jre 20774 3.72%
e LI 1E 3.97%

Yore 200112 1.02%
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6 | COMPANY INFCORMATION

Directors and advisers |

Directors . Registered office
FS Latnam {OAN Moar 33 Holbom,
R Willey PoLondan, Fngana ECIN 2HI

PG Barlonw :

T At . Independent auditors
P Cinst & Yourng LiP

i Bedford House,
Company secretary i 16 Bedfora Steet,

- © Belfast 812 70T

SM Crant (apponrted Ldanuary 2023)

topus Company Secretanal Seraces Lvped

Company number
12601636

Forward-looking statements

s Annual Report cortains cettam forward fooking statements related 1o the Company's future usmess
and frarcal performance and future events or developrnents. These staterments arc based on the current
Kriowledye and expetlalions ol misnagement and are sulject 1o assdmptions, reks and uncertamtics, some
ot which are related 1 factors that are beyond the contros of the Company Accord ngly, no assurarice can
be given that any particular expectation wi'll be met and forwaid-locking statements reqgarding past frenids o
actraties shiould mot be taken as 2 representation that suck tfrends or activities will continue in the future Fast
performance cannol be relied on as 3 guide to future performance. Nothing i this Annual Report should be

construcd as a proft forecast

e
e




